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OUR ETHICAL AND MORAL 
COMMITMENT

We, the employees of PNOC EDC, inspired by our 
company’s vision to become a total energy company 
and the world leader in geothermal energy, commit 
to fullfill our corporate mandate and optimize our 
individual talents and capabilities, resolve to live by 
and exemplify the values of teamwork, trust, integrity, 
respect for people and the rule of law, and caring for the 
environment, in the service of God and country.

OUR REASON FOR BEING

PNOC EDC provides viable solutions to increase our 
country’s capability to produce indigenous energy 
- while reducing our dependence on imported fuel - 
through the exploration, development, utilization and 
marketing of geothermal and other viable sources of 
energy like wind, among others; while ensuring our 
company’s sustainable growth under a deregulated and 
highly competitive industry.

PNOC EDC seeks to expand our country’s geothermal 
power production capability, marketing our technical 
expertise overseas to further strengthen our country’s 
positioning as the global geothermal power.
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The Making of 
a Global Company

Paul A. Aquino

PNOC EDC was created with the mandate of exploring 
and harnessing indigenous sources of energy.  

Almost three decades after, we have fulfilled that 
mandate and gone one notch higher by achieving 
geothermal leadership through our own corporate 
excellence.  PNOC EDC has reached a stature that no 
other local energy company, or government-owned 
and controlled corporation(GOCC) for that matter, has 
achieved.  And that is, to enable our country to be the 
world’s second largest geothermal producer.  This we 
have accomplished by means of sheer hard work and 
good corporate governance.

As the country’s largest geothermal producer, the 
challenge that looms over us is to help the Philippines  
become the largest geothermal producer in the 
world—that which could only be fulfilled by becoming 
a global company.  

Year 2005 already paved the way for PNOC EDC to 
have that global mindset and focus.   We stepped up 
the company’s listing in the Philippine Stock Exchange  
as an important business strategy that will help us 
secure a strong position in the future of the energy 
market. After the board approval of our privatization 
plan, we have contracted the services of CLSA 
Exchange Capital as financial advisor/underwriter/
global coordinator for our privatization program.

President’s Report

President
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Company reverted to historical cost as allowed under 
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) 
1 – First Time Adoption of  Philippine Reporting 
Standards – were  mainly responsible  for the drop  
in 2005 direct cost.   As a ratio to sales, direct cost 
dropped by 6%  from 56% in 2004. 

Fuelling the economy

As of   December 31, 2005, the Company has generated 
an accumulated 75,245 GWh from geothermal 
steam and electricity,   contributing US$3.2 billion 
in government savings from foreign exchange  as 
a result of the displaced 125 million barrels fuel oil 
equivalent (MMBFOE).  

At present, geothermal energy contributes 19% 
of the country’s power supply.  With an aggregate 
capacity of 1,149 MW, PNOC EDC accounts for 60.3 
% of the country’s total installed geothermal capacity 
of 1,905.4 MW--making it Asia’s undisputed leader in 
geothermal production.

In 2005, PNOC EDC contributed ¥2.1 billion consisting 
of ¥1.7 billion in income taxes and ¥431 million in 
royalty fees to the Department of Energy (DOE) 
and the local government units (LGUs) hosting our 
geothermal projects.

In a way, PNOC EDC has already achieved global 
status. But being global does not only mean employing 
the best technology available in the market or 
establishing as many operations in as many places. 
The kind of globalization PNOC EDC is more apt to 
pursue is the one that has to be understood first 
by its employees. PNOC EDC is only as good as the 
people who run it and the values those people hold 
on to in running the company.   Hence, everyone is 
encouraged to apply global standards in doing their 
work, no matter how complex or simple it may be.  
From top management to the ordinary worker, each 
employee has an important role to play in making 
PNOC EDC a global company.

By embracing change and taking it as more of an 
evolution, by strongly adhering to our code of conduct 
and business ethics, and by employing strategic and 
prudent financial management, we have exceeded 
our targets and set the pace towards realizing PNOC 
EDC’s mission of achieving global excellence not only 
in size and stature but more so, in every employee’s 
heart and mind.

Highest recorded net income

Year 2005 was a banner year for PNOC EDC having 
earned  the highest net income ever in its 29-year 
history.   This year’s net income amounted to ¥9.9 
billion, more than three times the ¥2.4 billion year 
2004 figure. In terms of percentage, this year’s net 
income almost reached 50% of net sales (¥21.6 
billion).  This was largely due to the double effect 
of the rise of the Peso (2005: ¥53.062 versus 2004: 
¥56.341) and  the decline of the Japanese Yen (2005: 
¥117.855 versus 2004: ¥103.05) versus the US Dollar 
currency.  Likewise, continued company-wide efforts 
to sustain increased operational efficiencies was 
evident in the higher sales volume of Leyte-BOT as 
the National Power Corporation’s nominated energy 
capacity remained at  4,268 Gwh since August 2004.  

Net sales increased to ¥21.6 billion from ¥20.6 billion 
in 2004.   Sale of electricity  (¥16.5 billion), geothermal 
(¥5 billion) and drilling revenue (¥149.5 million)  
comprised  the 2005  revenues.    

Cost of sales of ¥10.8 billion in 2005 was  lower by 
¥804 million than the ¥11.6 billion in 2004.   Lower 
payments to the BOT contractors, field maintenance 
costs and amortization of production wells as the 

A capsule laying ceremony was held in PNOC EDC’s 
Northern Negros Geothermal Project (NNGP) to 
commemorate the company’s long years of hard work 
in the province.
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Biyaya Program, which, simply put, is our way of 
giving back and sharing the bounties of nature with the 
society.   Through this revitalized and comprehensive 
community relations program focused on health, 
education, livelihood and environment, PNOC EDC 
aims to further improve the lives of the residents of its 
host communities and help them help themselves.

Awards and citations

PNOC EDC garnered several accolades for its various 
projects in 2005, thanks to the employees’ hard work 
and ingenuity. 

On top of the list is the award that the company received 
for its BacMan Geothermal Production Field (BGPF), 
which was declared as an eco-tourism destination by 
the Department of Tourism (DOT) in 2005.  It is the 
first-ever geothermal facility in the country to be 
bestowed with such an honor.

In December 2005, PNOC EDC was also honored 
by the Italian geothermal industry for its 30 years 
of outstanding contribution to geothermal energy 
development in the Philippines.  

Another noteworthy project is the Energy Camp, which 
won an Anvil Merit Award from the Public Relations 
Society of the Philippines (PRSP) and a Gold Quill 
Merit Award from the International Association of 
Business Communicators (IABC).  The Energy Camp 
was cited as an outstanding project that is geared 
towards a specific stakeholder—the youth.

PNOC EDC earned two more Gold Quill Awards, 
one for its CSR brochure entitled “Building Lives, 
Strengthening Communities” and another for its 2005 
wall calendar, “Sulyap.”

Since its inception, PNOC EDC has already paid 
royalties totaling around ¥1.6 billion to our host 
province, municipality or city and barangays as well 
as ¥1.4 billion to the Department of Energy (DOE). 

Balik-Biyaya

For almost three decades now, PNOC EDC has been a 
responsible corporate citizen.  Aside from remittances 
to the National Government, the Company also directly 
invested ¥190 million in the organization of 126 upland 
communities, supported with 238 livelihood projects 
since 1987, in all its geothermal sites.  From a cashless 
society, we are proud to say that these communities 
have accumulated a capital build up of at least ¥19 
million over the years.

PNOC EDC complemented these with an additional 
¥180 million for other projects on community 
development, ¥604 million for rural electrification 
as well as ¥44 million support to the Mt. Apo 
Foundation.  We estimate that our direct programs 
for the communities in the past 26 years, amounting 
to around ¥920 million, have benefited almost half 
a million poor Filipinos. PNOC EDC employees have 
also admirably shared the company’s core values on 
social responsibility through their active participation 
in our volunteer programs.  Such experiences have 
made our energy mission more fulfilling - for both the 
company and its employees.

To be more responsive to the short- and long-term 
needs of the Company’s host communities, PNOC 
EDC reengineered its Community Relations Program 
in 2004 and implemented starting 2005 its Balik-
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Our hard work and dedication 
have undoubtedly been richly 
rewarded through the years.  

Hence, we are paying it forward 
by sharing the bounties of our 

business with the society. 

Globalization beyond fame and business

To be a global company is to be ready for the world—
to comply with international standards, acquire 
world-class skills, invent and reinvent cutting-edge 
technologies and believe that the Filipino can excel 
and rise above the rest.

As we enter our thirtieth year of operation, we are 
raising the bar of corporate excellence by transcending 
our accomplishments and geothermal expertise.  For 
it is only in going beyond everything we have mastered 
that PNOC EDC can continue to grow.  

This, we plan to achieve by continuing with our 
diversification and expansion targets.  Now that 
we have already mastered geothermal technology, 
the next step for us is to upgrade our expertise 
by specializing in plant operations and in EPC or 
Engineering, Procurement and Construction, to make 
our capability complete. We hope to be experts not 
only in our own country, but also in other parts of the 
world where geothermal is exploitable. This would, 
first and foremost, prepare us for our impending 
takeover of the Upper Mahiao power plant in Leyte 
after its Build-Operate-Transfer (BOT) contract 
expires in June 2006.

Our hard work and dedication have undoubtedly 
been richly rewarded through the years.  Hence, we 
are paying it forward by sharing the bounties of our 
business with the society.  Beyond all the awards and 
financial indicators, the true quality of management 
is determined by the company’s social performance—
the so-called intangibles.  These intangibles reflect 
how a company has reached out and affected the lives 
of the communities where it operates.  

By capitalizing on our core business, PNOC EDC has 
empowered countless people and promoted rural 
development.  As we prepare to go to the next level of 
corporate excellence, we will continue to work hand 
in hand with our business partners, contribute to 
government coffers and lead our host communities to 
the mainstream of progress.  

PNOC EDC President/CEO Paul A. Aquino made a 
presentation on the role of geothermal in Asean 
energy at the 2005 Ascope conference held in 
Manila.
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As the country’s biggest geothermal producer, 
PNOC EDC continues to be the benchmark in 

harnessing energy down below.

Blazing the trail in steam generation

GEOTHERMAL AND DRILLING OPERATIONS
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Operating fields

For 2005, PNOC EDC’s four steamfields generated a 
total of 7,078.2 GWh of geothermal steam/electricity.  
Consequently, the company was able to displace an 
equivalent 11.8 million barrels of fuel oil for a total 
foreign exchange savings of about US$ 579.6 million 
(at RP’s average crude oil import cost of about $49.13/
barrel).

From this, almost 64% or 4,484 GWh was produced 
by the Leyte Geothermal Production Field (LGPF), the 
largest wet steamfield in the world.  The steam and 
energy audit made in Malitbog/South Sambaloran 
resulted in at least  ¥1 million monthly savings on 
the company’s Efficiency Payment to Ormat and 
an increase in the combined Malitbog Main and 
Bottoming Plants output by 0.70 MWe (equivalent to  
¥1.6 million per month).  Commendably, the Energy 
Audit Team was able to come up with solutions on how 
to rectify the energy losses along the steamline. Upon 
implementation, this will translate to an estimated 
gain of 4 MWe in Malitbog/South Sambaloran.

With a capacity of 192.5 MW, PNOC EDC’s second 
largest steamfield, the Southern Negros Geothermal 
Production Field (SNGPF) generated more than 
12,000 Kilo-tons steam to produce an equivalent of 
1,348 GWh of electricity.   For operational efficiency, 
the maintenance of the NJ8D, 101/102, and 111/112 
vessels of the Fluid Collection and Recycling System 
(FCRS) was completed.  The installation of 29 meters 

of SG3D Discharge Line Replacement and the 
construction of the OK5 ZDS Line Trench and Brine 
Header have also been finished.  Steam augmentation 
options were formulated to increase the capacity of 
Palinpinon 1 to meet the full-load requirement of the 
plant.  These include the workover and re-utilization 
of CBU (cannot-be-used) production wells such as 
PN-17D and PN-21D, and the drilling of additional 
M&R production well LG-5D.

For its part, the Bacon-Manito Geothermal Production 
Field (BGPF) was able to generate 403 GWh of 
energy.  BGPF remains PNOC EDC’s showcase 
for technological innovations.  Its Maintenance 
Department was able to fabricate a hot-tapping tool, 
another first in PNOC EDC, to help field personnel 
install a sampling point tapping or an injection tapping 
in a live, hot and pressurized two-phase line, steam 
line or an injection line without de-pressurizing it.  
The use of the tool can now be expanded to include the 
installation of various tapping points such as pressure 
and temperature tapping, which is necessary for the 
continuous operation of the FCRS. 

The Mindanao Geothermal Production Field (MGPF), 
on the other hand, is proud to report that it has 
exceeded its Minimum Energy Off-takes (MEOT) for 
the year 2005.  Its Mindanao 1 Geothermal Power 
Plant (M1GP) generated 423 GWh while its Mindanao 
2 Geothermal Power Plant (M2GP) churned out 421 
GWh of energy.  Their MEOT are 390 and 398 GWh, 
respectively.  MGPF also maintained its International 
Safety Rating System (ISRS) level 3 since 2004 and 
has attained 98.02% on its ISRS Action Compliance, 
surpassing the minimum requirement of 90%.
 

Exploration and Development  

PNOC EDC is gearing up for the trial commissioning 
of its 49-MW Northern Negros Geothermal Project 
(NNGP) in December 2006.  Financed through an 
Overseas Development Assistance (ODA) loan granted 
by the Japan Bank for International Cooperation 
(JBIC), the contract for Northern Negros’ full turnkey 
project was awarded to Japanese firm Kanematsu 
Corporation in January.  The full turnkey project 
includes the engineering design, supply, delivery, 
installation, testing and commissioning of the power 
facility and is scheduled to be completed in February 
2007.

The Bacon-Manito Geothermal Production Field 
was declared as an eco-tourism destination by the 
Department of Tourism (DOT).  The citation was given 
by no less than DOT Secretary Joseph “Ace” Durano.
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NNGP will be PNOC EDC’s fifth geothermal production 
field in the country.  It will also be the company’s first 
fully-owned power plant and the Philippines’ first 
power project to operate as a merchant plant under 
the new electricity environment.

Construction of the US$68.4 million project was 
marked by a ceremonial concrete laying on the power 
plant site in October.   The ceremony was held in 
recognition of PNOC EDC’s long years of hard work in 
solving the power shortage in Northern Negros.  

As of December 31, 2005, NNGP’s construction is in 
full swing and on schedule, having completed 71% of 
the transmission lines and 32% of the civil works.

DRILLING OPERATIONS

PNOC EDC’s drilling services continue to be a 
profitable venture for the company.  Overseas, PNOC 
EDC’s Energy Drilling Division (EDD) bagged a 12-
month drilling contract worth about US$6 million 
and four more contracts in Lihir Island, New Ireland 
Province, Papua New Guinea.  The 12-month drilling 
contract is the company’s fourth with the Lihir Gold 
Limited (LGL), which manages the gold mining 
operations in Lihir island.  The contract is for the 
drilling of geothermal and dewatering wells in Lihir 
island. 

Meanwhile, the Reservoir Engineering Department 
(RED) prepared the technical bid proposal for the 
Stage 1 Drilling Consultancy Services and Stage 2 

Power Plant Consultancy Services of the 55MWe 
development of the Sabalan Geothermal Project in 
Iran in coordination with the Geoscientific Department, 
Drilling Operations; Engineering, Procurement and  
Construction; and Field Operations.  The technical 
proposal includes the presentation of methodology 
and work schedule for the consultancy works, data 
collection and review, pre-drilling geoscientific 
fieldworks, well drilling and discharge testing, 
resource evaluation, reservoir modeling, laboratory 
studies, FCRS design/construction/operations and 
maintenance services and feasibility studies.  

The technical proposal was forwarded to the 
Consortium partners composed of Moshanir 
Engineering (local Iranian Partner) and Lahmeyer 
International (Germany) and submitted to the 
Renewable Energy Organization of Iran (SUNA) last 
October.  The technical bid was successful as relayed 
by SUNA through Lahmeyer last November and 
contract negotiation is now ongoing.

To further boost the company’s drilling performance 
standards in Safety and Service Quality, the EDD has 
embarked on a dual program aimed at increasing its 
competitiveness in the Drilling Service contracting 
business.  The program is being undertaken in time 
for EDD’s upcoming accreditation in Occupational 
Health and Safety Assessment Series (OHSAS 18001) 
and International Standards Organization (ISO 9001), 
respectively.  Both accreditations are expected to 
considerably increase the marketability of EDD’s 
drilling services to both local and overseas oil, gas 
and geothermal companies.

The hot tapping tool was fabricated by PNOC EDC’s 
maintenance Department in BGPF.

The Local Government officials of Northern Negros 
welcomed NNGP’s incoming Resident Manager, 
Engr. Gino P. dela Cruz.
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Wind energy projects

Wind measurements were conducted in Bayog, Ilocos 
Norte; Manoc-manoc, Boracay Island; Nubenta in 
Surigao del Norte; Tagkiling, Butuan City; Sta.Ana, 
Cagayan Province; and Dinagat Island, Surigao del 
Sur, courtesy of a grant given by German funding 
agency KfW.  These wind power prospects were 
measured as part of the Company’s Wind Resource 
Assessment Studies.

Other renewable energy projects

In recognition of PNOC EDC’s vast efforts in exploring 
various renewable energy sources, the China 
CAMC Engineering Co., Ltd (CAMCE) has signed 
a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the 
company.  The MOU will pave the way for CAMCE to 
provide assistance to PNOC EDC for the conduct and 
update of feasibility studies, technology assessments, 
and short-term experts relative to project preparation 
for renewable energy projects.  In addition, CAMCE 
shall secure the necessary financing facility from 
government financial institutions in China for the 
renewable energy projects by way of a loan agreement 
subject to the approval of the Philippine government 
and that of the People’s Republic of China.

26th Geothermal Conference and other energy 
conventions

Now on its 26th year, the Annual PNOC EDC 
Geothermal Conference held on March 9-10 proved to 
be another success for the company as geothermists 
from Japan, US, Pakistan and Nicaragua, and a 
number of participants from the University of the 
Philippines in Diliman and Bicol University attended 
the event.

This year’s conference theme: “Commercial 
Technologies:  Enhancing Energy Generation”, was 
emphasized by Department of Energy Undersecretary 
Guillermo R. Balce in his Keynote Address.  He 
stressed on the importance of having such a 
conference to provide a venue for geothermists 
to discuss technological innovations in raising 
the commercial viability of power and non-power 
geothermal applications in the Philippines.

PNOC EDC was also honored by the Italian 
geothermal industry for its 30 years of outstanding 
contribution to geothermal energy development 
in the Philippines.  PNOC EDC’s Vice President for 
Technical Services, Mr. Manuel S. Ogena, received 
the plaque of recognition on behalf of the company 
during the First Centennial Celebration of the 
Geothermal Electric Industry on December 10 at the 
Salone dei Cinquecento, Palazzo Vecchio, Florence, 
Italy.  The ceremony was hosted by the Italian 
Geothermal Union (UGI). 

PNOC EDC was honored by the Italian Geothermal 
Industry for its 30 years of outstanding contribution to 
geothermal energy development in the Philippines.
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ENERGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

PNOC EDC through its Energy Research and Development 
Department (ERDD) engaged more actively in the exploration 

of sustainable and green energy sources to support the 
government’s thrust of achieving energy self-sufficiency.

Exploring alternative sources of 
green energy and livelihood
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Jatropha Plantation Project

Tasked to assist in the government’s Jathropa 
Program, the Energy Research and Development 
Department (ERDD) was able to come up with a 
lab-scale production of Jatropha Oil and Jatropha 
Biodiesel.  They started off by conducting an initial 
study on the extraction of oil from Jatropha seeds 
and a literature review on biodiesel produced from 
Jatropha.  A series of meetings were held to discuss 
ERDD’s laboratory production of biodiesel from 
Jatropha seeds before they completed the design and 
fabrication of the expeller for the oil extraction from 
Jatropha seeds.  

Coco Methyl Ester (CME)

The ERDD-produced CME was named Cocopower 
to reflect its source i.e., coconut oil and the benefits 
derived from its use.  By yearend, PNOC EDC’s CME 
pilot plant was able to produce a total of 2,300 liters 
of CME from 11 batch production runs.  Managed and 
operated by the ERDD, the department continuously 
improves and monitors the quality of the company’s 
CME blend.  

ERDD conducted an on-the-road performance test 
of the 1% CME-diesel blend using the department’s 
service vehicles (Toyota Hi-Ace, Isuzu IPV and Nissan 
pick-up).   Then the ERDD took a step further by 
conducting an on-the-road performance test using 
the buses of PARTAS Transit.  

A test methodology for the bench dynamometer was 
also developed by the ERDD.  The methodology laid 
down the procedures to determine the maximum 
power and torque of the test engine using various 
CME-diesel blends.  The department was able to 
complete the bench dynamometer test using different 
CME-diesel blends.  CME mixtures from 1% to 10% 
by volume with diesel were used with test duration of 
five (5) hours per mixture.  The parameters monitored 
in the tests were engine temperature, oil pressure 
and fuel consumption at maintained RPM and engine 
loading.  The test has proven that optimum fuel 
efficiency is achieved by using 5% CME-diesel blend.

In 2005, ERDD provided a total of 1,500 liters of CME 
to the company vehicles in accordance with President 
Gloria Macapagal-Arroyo’s Circular No.5 “directing 
all departments, bureaus, offices, agencies and 
instrumentalities of the government, including 
government-owned and –controlled corporations, to 
incorporate the use of one percent (1%) by volume 
Coconut Methyl Ester in their diesel requirements.”  

Recognizing the high quality of PNOC EDC’s CME 
product, the ERDD has already prepared the necessary 
materials for its registration and accreditation with 
the DOE.

In order to adapt the CME plant/facility design in PNOC 
EDC livelihood projects, the ERDD has completed 
the concept design of a CME plant using geothermal 
waste heat for its operation for possible integration 
with the Southern Negros Geothermal Production 
Field’s Geothermal Agro-industrial Demonstration 
(GADP).

Contract signing for the Jatropha Plantation Project 
between PNOC EDC and Dacongcogon Producers 
Cooperative Marketing Association (DPCMA)

Cocopower: PNOC EDC’s contribution to energy 
efficiency
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Fuel Cell and Hydrogen Research Project

The ERDD continued with the optimization and 
fabricated alternative components for the first 
Polymer Electrolyte Membrane (PEM) Fuel Cell 
Prototype in the country as the department started 
with the procurement of the necessary materials 
and reagents for the 2nd phase of the fuel cell and 
hydrogen research project.   

During the 26th Geothermal Conference, ERDD’s 
consultant for the fuel cell and hydrogen research 
project, Dr. Leon Payawan, presented a paper entitled 
“Use of Conductive Polymer as Polyelectrolyte 
Membrane Fuel Cell Electrodes and In Situ Hydrogen 
Gas Photogenerator.”  The project  was able to fabricate 
a polyelectrolyte membrane fuel cell consisting of a 
membrane electrode assembly containing a Nafion 
polymer membrane sandwiched between two carbon 
cloth electrodes coated with the platinum catalyst.  
The product was a cheaper alternative material for 
use as electrode to reduce the cost of production.

Decentralized Energy Systems (DES) Project

PNOC EDC, through ERDD, continues to provide 
technical and financial assistance to private 
entrepreneurs to commercialize DES technologies 
such as solar photovoltaics, biogas systems, 
agriwaste-fired dryers/ovens, densified solid fuels 
and energy conservation devices.

For 2005, ERDD, through the DES Project, granted a 
total of ¥5.565 million loan packages to entrepreneurs 
Jover Light Industries, Inc. and Buffalo Industries 
Philippines, Inc.  This brings to  ¥72.7 million the loan 
packages that the DES Project has granted to a total 
of 19 entrepreneurs engaged in the development 
and commercialization of renewable and energy 
conservation technologies.

Jover Light Industries manufactures JB Recirculating 
Mechanical Grain Dryer with Burner, which uses 
rice hull as fuel while Buffalo Industries markets 
Light Eco, an energy saving device for fluorescent 
lamps.  The estimated BFOE savings from use of JB 
Grain Dyers and Light Eco in 2005 are 830 and 300, 
respectively.  

PNOC EDC, through ERDD, 
continues to provide technical 

and financial assistance to 
private entrepreneurs to 

commercialize DES technologies

ERDD’s CME Plant and Laboratory
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Livelihood Projects for the Geothermal Sites
Sub-Program

• Production of Essential Oils

As part of the ERDD’s contribution in upholding PNOC 
EDC’s corporate social responsibility (CSR), the 
department is broadening its horizons by venturing 
into essential oil production.  Feasibility studies, 
data gathering and experiments on the extraction 
of essential oils from Ylang-ylang and citronella 
have been conducted by the ERDD in preparation for 
setting-up its pilot plantation and incorporating the 
program with the company’s livelihood projects for 
its host communities.

• Geothermal Agro-industrial Demonstration (GADP) 
– Phase II

The ERDD has completed the rehabilitation of the 
GADP drying facilities. It is also evaluating the 
possibility of using GADP for the company’s livelihood 
projects.

Energy Audit

The Energy Audit Team of ERDD conducted energy and 
maintenance audits of LGPF and SNGPF pipelines as 
part of the continuous monitoring and improvement 
activities of EDC geothermal facilities.  These activities 
assure the optimum production and quality of steam 
from the geothermal wells.

Energy and maintenance audits were likewise 
conducted in the Head Office at Fort Bonifacio to 
identify areas for energy conservation and operation 
efficiency and improvement. 

The ERDD has completed developing the insulation 
audit methodology of geothermal steam lines for wet 
or rainy conditions and reviewed related documents 
and literature in preparation for the composition of 
plant/equipment specific energy manual and standard 
of measurements.

ERDD continues to research on the benefits of coconut 
oil for energy application.

To improve operational efficiency, ERDD regularly 
conducts energy audit.
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

To live up to its commitment to become a responsible 
corporate citizen and thereby sustain the company’s 

operations, PNOC EDC’s Environmental Management 
Department (EMD) consistently takes various measures to 

preserve the ecosystem in areas where it operates.

Stewards of the environment
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Guardians of the environment

With environmental monitoring and watershed 
management as its two major duties, EMD continued to 
ensure the company’s compliance with environmental 
laws and regulations and to promote sustainable 
energy development.

PNOC EDC conducted the regular monitoring of 
water quality and air quality in its five geothermal 
sites through daily, weekly and monthly gathering and 
analysis of water samples and measurement of H2S 
and noise levels.  The implementation of mitigating 
measures contained in the EIA/ECC enabled PNOC 
EDC to comply with government standards.  A 
multi-sectoral monitoring team organized per site 
performed quarterly monitoring of the company’s 
compliance with DENR requirements and government 
standards in addition to the annual audit conducted by 
the Department of Energy.

In 2005, EMD was able to reforest a total of 525 hectares 
in the company’s five geothermal reservations with the 
help of 84 company-organized farmers’ associations.  
It has also propagated a total of 755,542 seedlings 
in different nurseries. This brings the total number 
of seedlings maintained by PNOC EDC’s different 
geothermal sites to 823,275.  To date, the company 
has about 1,258 hectares of land for nursery and 
plantation.  Labor was contracted out to communities 
were PNOC EDC operates to provide an alternative 
source of livelihood to upland farmers and minimize, 
if not totally eradicate, kaingin-making/illegal tree 
cutting activities.

PNOC EDC also undertook routine forestry law 
enforcement activities within its geothermal 
reservations through its forest patrols.  These are 
apprehensions and confiscation of illegally cut logs 
and filing of cases against the violators.  By year-
end, patrolling resulted in 18 and 14 confiscations for 
illegal logging and kaingin, respectively.

Monitoring the watershed

To ensure PNOC EDC’s compliance with environmental 
laws and standards, EMD regularly undertakes an 
effective resource management system.  It conducts 
surveys and mapping of newly reforested areas and 
does rainfall, riverflow, and soil erosion monitoring 
in areas where the company operates.

EMD also implements regular self-awareness, 
team building and technical trainings for the 
farmers’ associations in PNOC EDC’s geothermal 

sites.  It also monitors the progress and activities 
of these associations to ensure their productivity.  

Preserving clean and green energy

In its endeavors toward reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions and the country’s dependence on imported 
energy, the Philippines through PNOC EDC signed 
an emission reductions purchase agreement (ERPA) 
for the Nasulo Project.  The agreement was signed 
by PNOC EDC President/CEO Paul Aquino and by the 
World Bank’s Country Director for the Philippines, 
Joachim von Amsberg as trustee of the Netherlands 
Clean Development Mechanism (CDM) facility.  

Through the ERPA, the Nasulo project will possibly 
hold the distinction of being the first geothermal 
project to benefit from the CDM.  The certified 
emission reductions generated by the project will be 
purchased by the Netherlands Clean Development 
Mechanism Facility (NCDMF). The World Bank, as 
trustee of the Facility, will purchase greenhouse gas 
emission reductions from projects on behalf of the 
Netherlands Government. The NCDMF will purchase 
a minimum of 440,000 tons of carbon dioxide from the 
Nasulo project between 2008 and 2012. 
  
The Nasulo project is expected to earn US$224,000  
per year based on the Kyoto Protocol incentives 
for clean energy.  The Philippines is one of the 155 
signatories of the Kyoto Protocol which requires 
industrialized country signatories to facilitate financing 
for investments in projects reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions in the developing world through the CDM.

Signing of the ERPA between PNOC EDC and World 
Bank
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

PNOC EDC has been more than a leader in 
geothermal technology—it has been a staunch 

advocate of corporate social responsibility.

Yearning to be a man for others
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For three decades now, PNOC EDC has been 
committed to uplifting the lives in its host 
communities as one of the company’s core values.  
Owing its success not only to its employees but 
also to its stakeholders, the company fortifies its 
dedication to empower them through various health, 
education, livelihood and environment projects 
through its revitalized corporate social responsibility 
(CSR) program aptly named Balik-Biyaya (para sa 
Kalusugan, Karunungan, Kabuhayan at Kapaligiran 
ng Pamayanan),

As a fitting tribute to the company’s noteworthy 
CSR program, PNOC EDC received the Gold Quill 
Award for its CSR brochure entitled “Building Lives, 
Strengthening Communities.”  The Gold Quill Awards 
Philippines is given annually by the International 
Association of Business Communicators to honor 
the achievements of professional communicators by 
recognizing excellence in communication.  “Building 
Lives, Strengthening Communities” encapsulates 
how PNOC EDC goes the extra mile to touch the hearts 
and empower the residents in its host communities.

Balik-Biyaya Para sa Kalusugan
(HEALTH and SANITATION) 

More than 5,000 patients benefited from PNOC EDC’s 
various medical and dental outreach programs in its 
geothermal sites.  Employees in LGPF, SNGPF and 
MGPF also donated blood to the Philippine National 
Red Cross in their respective blood letting activities.

To continuously look after the well-being of its host 
communities, PNOC EDC helped in renovating 
numerous Barangay Health Centers (BHC) and 
provided medicines and supplies in order for these 
BHCs to serve more patients.  Honoraria and training 
programs were also provided to barangay health 
workers in its host communities.

Balik-Biyaya Para sa Karunungan (EDUCATION) 

PNOC EDC continues to sow the seeds of knowledge 
among the youth in its host communities.  From 
toddlers to adults, beneficiaries are given various 
opportunities to study and broaden their horizons 
through PNOC EDC’s education projects--simply 
because the company believes that one should never 
stop learning.

For the school year 2005-2006, the company has given 
out scholarship grants to 900 deserving high school 
students in its host communities in Leyte, Bicol, 
Southern and Northern Negros while 10 commendable 
college students in North Cotabato received their 
monthly stipend, tuition and miscellaneous fees, 
plus books and school supplies for this school year, 
courtesy of MGPF.

Now on its second year, it has already garnered 
accolades from the local government officials of its 
host provinces, not to mention the grateful parents of 
its first batch of scholars.

Moreover, PNOC EDC has also shouldered the 
miscellaneous fees of 54 elementary schools in its 
host barangays, benefiting over 15,000 students.  
The company also conducted competency training 
to various elementary and high school teachers and 
provided assistance in 6 literary centers. 

The year 2005 also marked the launching of “Schools 
for Excellence”—a partnership project with the 
Department of Education (DepEd), the host LGUs of 
Ormoc City and Kananga, Leyte and the Parents-
Teachers-Community Associations (PTCA) of Brgy. 
Tongonan Ormoc City and Brgy. Tongonan Kananga, 
the recipient barangays of this project.

“Schools for Excellence” is the company’s pilot school 
management project under DepEd’s Adopt-A-School-
Program.  The company hopes to produce elementary 
graduates comparable to those of Manila’s top schools 
through this project.  The template for this project 
shall be offered by DepEd to top corporations for 
their adoption of any of the 56,000 public elementary 
schools.

The inauguration of the Schools for Excellence Project 
in Tongonan, Ormoc City.
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Balik-Biyaya Para sa Kabuhayan (Livelihood)

PNOC EDC constantly introduces ways to uplift the 
lives in its host communities through its Balik-Biyaya 
program. The company develops various large-scale 
livelihood projects to augment the income of the 
households in areas where it operates.

In its bid to harness other forms of renewable energy, 
PNOC EDC is allocating  ¥1.6 million for a plantation 
project that is a potential source of biofuels—otherwise 
known as the Jatropha Plantation Project.  The project 
involves the propagation of a plant species known 
as Jatropha curcas, which has been identified as a 
potential source of feedstock for biofuels.  The 37% 
oil content of the jatropha plant can be a substitute 
for diesel fuel.

To implement this project, PNOC EDC has signed 
a Memorandum of Agreement with agricultural 
cooperative Dacongcogon Producers Cooperative 
Marketing Association (DPCMA) and D1 Oils Asia 
Pacific, Inc.  DPCMA operates a sugar mill in Brgy. 
Tabugon, Kabankalan City, Negros Occidental and 
also supplies sugarcanes to other sugar mills in the 
province.  D1 Oils Asia Pacific, Inc. is a subsidiary of D1 
Oils Plc of the United Kingdom, a company committed 
to sustain the production of competitively priced and 
high quality biofuels to reduce global reliance on non-
renewable energy sources.

Other projects such as the establishment of a 
Citronella pilot plant that will produce essential oils 
and the use of alternative fruits for drying are in the 
offing.  This will eventually be incorporated in PNOC 
EDC’s livelihood projects in its geothermal sites.  

To boost the promotion of the SNGPF farmers 
associations’ products, PNOC EDC assisted them in 
labeling/packaging their Virgin Coconut Oil and Honey 
products.  These are used together with the salabat of 
LGPF as birthday gifts for LGU officials and gifts for 
PNOC EDC’s important guests.

The company also conducted various trainings to 
further improve the livelihood in PNOC EDC’s host 
communities.   Short courses on social development 
(e.g., teambuilding, self-awareness and coop pre-
membership) and technical enhancement (e.g., 
rattan and abaca craft training, tilapia culture, herbal 
medicine, pili food processing, herbal soap making) 
were offered to enable them to upgrade their skills 
and augment their income.

In preparation for any natural disaster that may 
occur in the future, CPD developed a community 
disaster preparedness program in coordination 
with the National Disaster Coordinating Council.  
Information materials such as brochures and posters 
were produced and translated into various dialects.  
Community trainings will commence in March 2006 to 
allow the residents in PNOC EDC’s host communities 
to understand the program and be prepared for any 
natural calamity.

Balik-Biyaya Para sa Kapaligiran (Environment)

The BacMan Geothermal Production Field (BGPF) 
again made history when the Department of Tourism 
(DOT) declared it an eco-tourism destination.  PNOC 
EDC’s BGPF was commended for its “pursuance 
of sustainable development in its preservation, 
development and promotion of eco-tourism sites 
within the geothermal reservation.  These include the 
Botong Twin Falls, the Inang Maharang Mud Pool, the 
Botong Bat Sanctuary and the Nag-Aso Lake, while 
providing geothermal power to the Bicol Region and 
the island of Luzon.”

BGPF is the first-ever geothermal facility in the country 
to be bestowed with such an honor.  This citation was 
personally given by DOT Secretary Joseph Ace H. 
Durano and DOT Region V Director Maria O. Ravanilla 
to PNOC EDC President and CEO Paul A. Aquino and 
BGPF Resident Manager Liberato S. Virata during 
the Gayon Bicol Fiesta III, a DOT sponsored annual 
festival held in Naga City which showcases the 
region’s tourism potentials and products.  

Abaca is one of the major products of farmers 
associations assisted by the company.
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Regular reforestation projects, tree planting 
activities and clean-up drives were also organized 
and conducted in various project sites participated in 
by employees, living up to PNOC EDC’s commitment 
to preserve the environment—the very source of its 
lifeblood.

Energy Camp 2005

PNOC EDC rewarded its top scholars by giving them a 
rare chance to visit one of the company’s geothermal 
sites and join the 2005 Energy Camp.  A total of 184 
scholars were able to participate in this alternative 
weeklong summer camp program, which provided 
them sheer experiential learning, promoted physical 
wellness and instilled environmentalism, discipline 
and teamwork.  

The camp offers outdoor activities like hiking, 
rappelling, basic martial arts and survival training.  
The social forestry program of the company provides 
a venue for the campers to immerse in the company’s 
watershed management program, visit farmers’ 
associations, plant trees, learn how to make compost 
pits, and form their own Youth Congress that will 
advocate environmental issues.

PNOC EDC’s scholars in Leyte were able to crossover 
with scholars in Bicol while the company’s qualified 
scholars in Mt. Apo were able to visit PNOC EDC’s 
sprawling geothermal site in Negros Oriental and 
vice versa.  PNOC EDC’s scholars in its soon-to-be 
commissioned geothermal site in Negros Occidental 
were also given a chance to join the camp in Negros 
Oriental.  The Energy Camp was organized and 
conducted by no less than PNOC EDC’s employee-
volunteers.  

Rural Electrification

Committed to bring light to the countryside, PNOC EDC 
was able to energize 74 barangays in 2005.  Twenty-
eight of them were in Leyte, 15 in Southern Leyte, 
10 in Oriental Negros and 21 in Cotabato.  All these 
barangays are ready for commercial electrification 
under the company’s Rural Electrification Program.

PNOC EDC continued its Light Emitting Diode (LED) 
Project in 2005.  1,000 LED Light in a Box Systems were 
turned over to remote and un-energized barangays 
in Leyte.  Trainings on how to install, operate and 

maintain LED Solar Light in a Box Systems were also 
given to the municipal staff of Silay and Bacolod City, 
Negros Occidental.

Royalty Benefits

PNOC EDC continues to live up to its vow to empower 
the Filipino people by regularly remitting royalty 
payments to the national and local government.  These 
royalty payments have subsidized power rates and 
provided sources of livelihood for the company’s host 
communities, promoted environmental protection 
and helped energize the countryside through the 
government’s Accelerated Barangay Electrification 
Program—thereby improving the lives of innumerable 
Filipinos in more ways than one.

For 2005, actual royalty payments to the DOE and 
Local Government Units (LGUs) amounted to ¥412 
million.

Computer training is one of the benefits enjoyed by 
PNOC EDC scholars.
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HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

Behind PNOC EDC’s sterling performance is a team of 
brilliant, well-trained and dedicated professionals.

Honing a world-class workforce
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PNOC EDC continued to thrive amidst austerity as 
its Human Resources Management Division (HRMD) 
managed to implement activities aimed at bringing 
out the best in its employees while complying with 
the government’s Administrative Order No. 103 and 
Executive Order No. 366. 

On top of the list is PNOC EDC’s very first managers’ 
forum, which was held in scenic Antipolo City.  The 
forum was held primarily to introduce all newly 
promoted managers to the rest of the company’s 
management team in order for all of them to bond 
together into the new PNOC EDC Management Team.  
It was also during this session that the company’s 
common set of management values and standards 
were fortified.

Another noteworthy activity is the management and 
labor unions’ teambuilding activity held at the Leyte 
State University, Baybay, Leyte.  The activity was 
done to foster better work relations and improve 
their understanding of each other’s roles.  It also 
took into consideration the ongoing negotiations of 
LGPF management and the Tongonan Workers’ Union 
(TWU) as well as the upcoming negotiations between 
management and the Leyte-A Geothermal Project 
Employees’ Union (LAGPEU).  

Compensation and Manpower Planning

HRMD introduced a new point-based scheme for the 
computation of the 2005 merit increases.  It likewise 
implemented a new salary structure based on the new 
salary planning and forced ranking procedures and 
came up with updated guidelines for the employees’ 
progression and salary distribution.  HRMD’s 
Compensation and Manpower Planning section also 
prepared its guidelines for converting old position 
levels to new job codes.

PNOC EDC underwent a company-wide reorganization 
after implementing its third Manpower Reduction 
Program (MRP) in 2005.  Overlapping and less 
productive functions were identified and corrected.  
HRMD and a conclave of senior members of the 
management team evaluated the existing table 
of organization and manpower count.  They also 
deliberated in order to come up with a table of 
organization that is deemed to be most beneficial to 
the company.

Collective Bargaining Agreement

HRMD was able to forge a win-win situation to preserve 
the company’s Industrial Peace (IP) as it concluded its 
CBA with the labor unions within PNOC EDC.   In what 
could be record time in Region XII and in the whole 
of Mindanao, PNOC EDC’s management panel and 
the Mount Apo Workers Union (MAWU) finished their 
negotiations for the CBA in just 45 minutes.  

Other concluded CBAs were those with BGPF 
Association of Democratic Labor Organizations 
(BGPF-ADLO), Leyte-A Geothermal Project 
Employees’ Union (LAGPEU), PNOC-Energy Group of 
Employees Association (PEGEA), PNOC-EDC SNGP 
Supervisory Association - Association of Professional, 
Supervisory, Office and Technical Employees’ Union 
(PESSA-APSOTEU), SNGPF Rank and File Union 
(SNGPF R/F) and Tongonan Workers’ Union (TWU). 

Drug-Free Workplace Policy

The implementation of PNOC EDC’s Drug-Free 
Workplace Policy went in full swing with its formal 
launching in July.  This noteworthy project resulted 
from a series of workshops with management 
representatives and union presidents from all sites.  
The policy covers all officers, directors and employees 
irrespective of position or classification.  

To effectively execute its dangerous drug abuse 
prevention, detection and control program, the 
company formed an assessment team that was 
trained on the prevention, clinical assessment and 
counseling of employees and other related activities.   

HRMD, in cooperation with the Medical Services 
Department, organized a seminar in its Fort Bonifacio 
office to give employees a better understanding of 
the company’s Drug-Free Workplace Policy and its 
incorporation with the company’s Discipline Policy.

PNOC EDC managers banded together at the very 
first managers’ forum
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State Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements

The Board of Directors
PNOC Energy Development Corporation
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City
Metro Manila

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of the PNOC Energy Development Corporation (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Philippine National Oil Company) as of December 31, 2005 and the related statements of 
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended.  These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted state auditing standards in the Philippines. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the PNOC Energy Development Corporation as of December 31, 2005 and the results of its operations 
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted state accounting principles in the 
Philippines.

Republic of the Philippines
COMMISSION ON AUDIT

Commonwealth Avenue, Quezon City, Philippines

COMMISSION ON AUDIT

JAIME P. NARANJO
Director IV

Cluster III - Public Utilities
Corporate Government Sector

April 28, 2006
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PNOC ENERGY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of Philippine National Oil Company)
BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2005
(With comparative figures for 2004)
(In Philippine Peso)

  2004 
(as restated) Notes 2005

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5           4,450,089,945              846,319,965 

Cash - restricted 6                            -              3,284,180,923 

Trade and other receivables-net 7           4,599,415,154            4,456,262,592 

Parts and supplies inventories 8              956,762,872            1,050,199,970 

Due from affiliated companies 46                 2,593,818                  4,015,681 

Investment in available-for-sale securities 10           2,726,590,585  - 

Other current  assets 9              530,474,808            2,981,872,718 

   Total Current Assets           13,265,927,182          12,622,851,849 

Non-Current Assets

Investments at cost 11               45,062,500                45,000,000 

Property and equipment - net 12          12,482,198,662          12,966,235,829 

Production wells - net 13          11,959,279,891          12,194,242,693 

BOT power plants - net 14 & 39         20,870,005,021          21,845,062,625 

Exploratory and development costs 15           4,736,303,160            3,941,841,629 

Investment property - net 16              279,774,800              280,628,418 

Deferred tax assets 34           4,298,051,056            6,469,642,118

Other non-current assets - net 17           2,053,771,643            1,584,342,436 

   Total Non-Current Assets          56,724,446,733          59,326,995,748 

Non-current assets held for sale 18                 4,757,472                34,682,390 

TOTAL ASSETS           69,995,131,387          71,984,529,987 



28/29

   2004 
(as restated) Notes 2005

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 19           4,138,292,512            3,415,732,200 

Income tax payable 33           2,087,551,142              790,856,358 

Due to affiliated companies 46              364,167,738               460,310,921 

Royalty fee payable 20 and 37              613,194,966              472,996,476 

BOT lease obligations 21 and 39           5,058,280,501            6,352,690,167 

Long-term debt 22            4,616,888,191           3,378,922,463 

   Total Current Liabilities          16,878,375,050          14,871,508,585 

Non-Current Liabilities

Royalty fee payable - net of current portion 20 and 37           1,529,978,668            1,196,281,737 

BOT lease obligations - net of current portion 21 and 39           2,777,311,576            8,319,071,616 

Long-term debt - net of current portion 22          35,907,099,711          44,694,121,660 

Retirement benefit obligation 42              903,521,207              943,685,360 

Other long-term liabilities 23              235,220,993              222,643,349 

   Total Non-Current Liabilities           41,353,132,155          55,375,803,722 

TOTAL LIABILITIES          58,231,507,205          70,247,312,307 

EQUITY          11,763,624,182           1,737,217,680

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY           69,995,131,387          71,984,529,987

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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PNOC ENERGY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of Philippine National Oil Company)
STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2005
(With comparative figures for 2004) 
(In Philippine Peso)

   
2004 

(as restated) Notes 2005

NET SALES 26, 38 and 40    21,572,382,035    20,644,488,402 

COST OF SALES 27 and 39    10,796,235,673     11,600,314,705 

GROSS PROFIT    10,776,146,362      9,044,173,697 

OTHER OPERATING INCOME 28        682,488,520      1,188,186,237 

OPERATING EXPENSES 29      1,912,076,431      2,164,372,255 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 30          89,787,142        799,216,269 

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS      9,456,771,309     7,268,771,410 

FINANCE COSTS 31      2,110,339,649      1,820,378,000 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS (GAIN) 32    (6,418,640,384)      1,938,165,015 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX     13,765,072,044     3,510,228,395 

PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX

     Current tax 33 1,677,383,618 1,120,406,825

     Deferred tax 33 2,171,591,063       (51,856,074)

NET INCOME       9,916,097,363      2,441,677,644

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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PNOC ENERGY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of Philippine National Oil Company)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended December 31, 2005
(With comparative figures for 2004)
(In Philippine Peso)

 
 

Capital
Stock 

(Note 24)

Fair Value and 
Other Reserves 

(Note 25)

Retained
Earnings

Total Equity

Balance, January 1, 2004
     (as restated) 10,000,000,000                   -   (10,704,459,964)      (704,459,964)

Changes in Equity for 2004:

      Net Income   2,441,677,644 2,441,677,644 

Balance, December 31, 2004 
(as restated) 10,000,000,000                   -   (8,262,782,320) 1,737,217,680 

Changes in Equity for 2005:

     Net Income 9,916,097,363 9,916,097,363 

     Unrealized Holding Gain on 
Available for Sale Investments 110,309,139    110,309,139 

Balance, December 31, 2005 10,000,000,000  110,309,139  1,653,315,043 11,763,624,182

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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PNOC ENERGY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of Philippine National Oil Company)
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended December 31, 2005
(With comparative figures for 2004) 
(In Philippine Peso)

 Notes 2005
2004 

(as restated)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities   

Cash receipts from customers    21,234,224,354    18,651,874,142 

Cash paid to suppliers and employees      7,397,345,669    14,347,503,143 

Cash Generated from Operations    13,836,878,685     4,304,370,999 

    Interest expenses paid    (1,008,785,015)       (718,242,116)

    Income taxes paid        (278,407,614)       (672,164,362)

Net cash from operating activities  48    12,549,686,056      2,913,964,521 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Exploratory and development costs    (1,108,304,466)       (990,068,257)

Acquisition of property and equipment       (449,781,957)       (322,032,891)

Investments in available-for-sale securities         106,320,191                       -   

Stocks and other investments                       -            29,322,285 

Investments in joint venture                       -               (179,523)

Net cash used in investing activities     (1,451,766,232)    (1,282,958,386)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Payment of BOT lease obligations    (6,351,964,216)    (6,048,724,385)

Payment of long-term debt    (3,580,530,409)    (3,261,656,981)

Long-term loan drawdowns      2,438,344,781     4,482,698,396 

Short-term financing with local banks                       -      (2,333,516,000)

Short-term loan proceeds                       -       2,000,000,000 

Net cash used in financing activities     (7,494,149,844)     (5,161,198,970)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents     3,603,769,980    (3,530,192,835)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning         846,319,965      4,376,512,800 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End 5     4,450,089,945        846,319,965 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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PNOC ENERGY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of Philippine National Oil Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2005

 

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 
 
PNOC Energy Development Corporation (PNOC-EDC or the Company) was incorporated and registered with the Philippine 
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on March 5, 1976.

PNOC-EDC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Philippine National Oil Company which was created under Presidential Decree 
No. 334 on November 9, 1973.

Presidential Decree Number 334, otherwise known as the Charter of the Philippine National Oil Company (PNOC), 
empowered PNOC to undertake exploration, discovery and development of all forms of energy resources, including 
geothermal services of heat and power. In line with this decree, the Company, being a subsidiary of PNOC, entered into 
service contracts with the Department of Energy (DOE) in 1981 to develop the geothermal resources in Tongonan, Leyte; 
Palinpinon, Negros Oriental; and Bacon-Manito in Albay and Sorsogon. New service contracts were signed with the 
DOE for the development of Mt. Apo in North Cotabato (March 24, 1992), Mt. Labo in Camarines Norte (March 14, 1994), 
Northern Negros (March 24, 1994) and Mt. Cabalian in Southern Leyte (January 13, 1997). The contracts grant certain 
rights and privileges to the Company in the form of tax exemption (except income tax) and other incentives.

The registered office address of the Company is Merritt Road, Ft. Bonifacio, Taguig City, Metro Manila.
 
 

2. STATUS OF OPERATIONS 
 

Geothermal
 
 
The Company started commercial steam production in Tongonan, Leyte and Palinpinon I, Negros Oriental in January 
1984 while the Bacon-Manito (Bacman) I geothermal project in the provinces of Albay and Sorsogon started commercial 
operation in May 1993. Bacman II’s first modular plant (Cawayan) commercially began operation in March 1994 while its 
second modular plant (Botong) operated in December 1997. Palinpinon II’s four modular plants operated in December 
1993 (Nasuji), November 1994 (Okoy), January 1995 (Sogongon #1) and March 1995 (Sogongon #2).

 

Nasulo Geothermal Project

In May 2003, PNOC-EDC proceeded to bid out the full turnkey contract for the installation, construction and commissioning 
of the 20 Megawatt (MW) Power Plant and the associated switchyard and transmission line. The PNOC-EDC Board 
declared in May 2004 the lone bid submitted as non-responsive due to major deviations from the power plant specifications 
contained in the bidding documents. Since then, PNOC-EDC has rebidded the full turnkey contract. The Company released 
the invitation to apply for eligibility for the project rebidding last April 13, 2005. Subsequently, the scheduled submission 
of technical and financial bids on January 16, 2006 resulted to a failed bidding.  

The projected commissioning date of the power plant is scheduled in 2008.
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Tanawon Geothermal Project

The 40MW Power Plant project is located within the Bacon-Manito area. Since the drilling of two production wells in 2000, 
no activity has been conducted for this project pending firm up of the project’s financing facility. The project is currently 
being reviewed by the National Economic and Development Authority (NEDA) for possible funding under the Japan Bank 
for International Cooperation (JBIC) Regular Loan Facility.

Northern Negros Geothermal Project

The Northern Negros Geothermal Project (NNGP) involves the development of a geothermal steamfield and the installation 
of a 40 MW base-load power plant to meet the projected increased power demand in Negros Island. It includes the 
following components: (a) drilling of 15 production wells and 3 reinjection wells; (b) construction of a fluid collection and 
reinjection system (FCRS); (c) the construction of a 40 MW power plant including a switchyard; (d) construction of a 24-km 
transmission line to connect to an NPC substation; and (e) consulting services for the implementation of the project.

The project received NEDA approval on February 15 1994, and was later confirmed for financing under the 21st Overseas 
Economic Cooperation Fund (OECF) Yen Package with a total loan amount of ¥14,460 million. On November 16, 2005, 
the NEDA approved the proposed project cost increase from a revised estimate of  ¥6,880.5 million   in 2002 to ¥7,836.0 
million.

The power plant engineering, procurement and construction (EPC) turnkey contract was awarded to Kanematsu 
Corporation on January 26, 2005 and a notice for the contractor to proceed was given on   March 3, 2005. As of end 
December 2005, physical accomplishment for the power plant construction has reached 31.8%. The power plant is 
scheduled to be commissioned by January 2007.

Power Generation

The Company marked its formal entry into power generation business with the commercial operation of its Build-Operate-
Transfer (BOT) power projects in 1997:  the Leyte-Cebu power facilities (comprised of the 125 MW Upper Mahiao and 77 
MW Malitbog 1 power plants) in November 1997 and the 47 MW Mindanao I geothermal power project in North Cotabato 
in March 1997. The Leyte-Luzon power facilities (comprised of the 154 MW Malitbog 2 & 3, 180 MW Mahanagdong and 49 
MW Leyte Optimization power plants) started commercial operation in June 1998. The 48.25 MW Mindanao II geothermal 
power project in North Cotabato started commercial operation in June 1999.
 
 
Wind Power 
 
 
Northern Luzon Wind Power Project  

In March 1999, the Ministry of International Trade and Industry (MITI) of Japan commissioned Japan External Trade 
Organization (JETRO) to undertake a feasibility study on the development of wind power prospects in Northern Luzon. 
Results of the study indicated a total of 120 MW, which can be developed into three phases at about 40 MW per phase. 
Accordingly, the DOE tasked PNOC-EDC to undertake phased development of the project. 

The proposed wind farm is located south of the Municipality of Burgos in the Province of Ilocos Norte, approximately 43 
kilometers north of Laoag City with an area of close to 300 hectares for the first phase. 

The project includes the design and construction of the wind farm and a 230 kV transmission line to National Power 
Corporation’s (NPC) substation in Laoag City. The necessary Environmental Compliance Certificate (ECC), local 
government endorsements as well as the NEDA Board approval, have been secured. A JBIC Special Yen Loan Facility was 
signed on March 28, 2002 and became effective on October 24, 2002. 

During the last quarter of 2003, JBIC issued its concurrence for the pre-qualification of contractors for the Wind Farm 
Turnkey Contract and the Transmission Lines Turnkey Contract, as well as the concurrence to negotiate the Technical 
Consultancy Services with the highest ranked bidder.
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Of the four (4) pre-qualified contractors, namely:  Sumitomo, Itochu, Marubeni and Kanematsu, only Kanematsu failed 
to submit bids for the subject contracts on November 12, 2004. The technical bid evaluation revealed that all bids were 
responsive to conditions set in the bid documents. JBIC concurred to the technical evaluation results of PNOC-EDC on 
November 18. However, it did not concur to the PNOC-EDC Financial Evaluation Report submitted last November 2004. 
After a year (December 2005), PNOC-EDC submitted to JBIC a reappraisal study on the viability of a 30MW wind farm and 
115 kV transmission line for their review and comments. 

Other Wind Power Prospects 

In October 2003, NEDA endorsed to Kreditanstalt für Weiderausbau (KFW) (German Development Bank) the Terms of 
Reference (TOR) to conduct the feasibility studies of three wind power projects in three sites [(a) Nubenta, Surigao (10-15 
MW), (b) Bayog, Burgos, Ilocos Norte (6-10 MW), and (c) Boracay, Aklan (5-10 MW)]. KFW has allocated the amount of Euro 
450,000 from its Studies and Expert Fund (SEF) Grant Facility to fund these studies. 

KFW has likewise committed an amount of up to Euro 40 million to finance the investment requirements of these wind 
projects (if found feasible) pursuant to the Philippine/German grants bilateral negotiations held in Bonn, Germany last 
June 2003. 

PNOC-EDC & KFW’s Agency Contract for the selection of a consultant in Germany was finalized last April 2004. Consulting 
contract with Decon was signed in October 2004 for the conduct of Wind Resource Assessment Studies in these three 
wind projects.

NEDA likewise endorsed a US$450,000 grant funding under the Spanish Protocol for the conduct of a Feasibility Study on 
Wind Resources Assessment in Camiguin, Siargao and Dinagat and Taytay, Palawan. 
 
 

3. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs) for 
the first time. 

These financial statements are presented in Philippine peso because this is the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates. They are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for fair market 
valuation of financial instruments (financial assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments). 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.  Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

In preparing the opening balance sheet, the Company  adjusted amounts previously reported in the financial statements 
prepared in accordance with Philippine generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  An explanation of the impact of 
the transition to PFRS on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows and a quantification of the effect of 
the transition to PFRS are provided in Note 49.

The new accounting standards adopted by the Company which prescribe new accounting measurement and disclosure 
practices are summarized as follows:

• PAS 1 (Revised 2003), “Presentation of Financial Statements,” provides a framework within which an entity assesses 
how to present fairly the effects of transactions and other events. It provides the criteria for classifying liabilities as 
current or non-current, prohibits the presentation of items of income and expense as extraordinary items, specifies 
disclosures about the judgments made by management in applying accounting policies, the key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the balance sheet date that have significant risks.  

• PAS 2 (Revised 2003) “Inventories,” clarifies the scope to exclude producers of agricultural and forest products, 
agricultural produce after harvest, minerals and mineral products. The standard reduces the alternatives for the 
measurement of inventories, prohibiting the use of Last-In, First-Out (LIFO) formula. It requires disclosure of the 
carrying amount of inventories carried at fair value less cost to sell and the amount of any write-downs to inventories 
recognized as an expense in the period. 
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• PAS 8 (Revised 2003), “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,” eliminates the concept 
of fundamental error and the allowed alternative to retrospective application of voluntary changes in accounting 
policies and retrospective restatement to correct prior period errors. The standard defines material omissions 
and misstatements and describes how to apply the concept of materiality when applying accounting policies and 
correcting errors.

• PAS 10 (Revised 2003), “Events After the Balance Sheet Date,” clarifies that dividends declared after balance sheet 
date are not to be recognized as a liability at the balance sheet date.

• PAS 16 (Revised 2003), “Property, Plant and Equipment,” prescribes the accounting treatment for property, plant 
and equipment and related disclosure requirements.  The standard contains a limited revision to provide additional 
guidance and clarification on recognition and measurement of items of property, plant and equipment. It provides 
guidance on initial and subsequent recognition as well as measurement after recognition. It requires depreciation 
for each significant part of an item of property, plant and equipment. The standard also provides guidance on the 
determination of the carrying amount of the assets, the residual value, depreciation period and derecognition 
principles to be observed. 

• PAS 17 (Revised 2003), “Leases,” provides limited revision to clarify the classification of a lease of land and buildings 
and prohibits expensing of initial direct costs in the financial statements of lessors.

• PAS 19, “Employee Benefits,” applies to all employee benefits offered by an employer to employees and their 
dependents and beneficiaries. This standard applies to employee benefits under: (i) formal plans and agreements 
between an enterprise and its employees, (ii) national, local, industry or multi-employer plans; and informal 
practices giving rise to a constructive obligation. This standard also identifies the following categories of employee 
benefits such as short-term employee benefits, post employment benefits, other long-term employee benefits and 
termination benefits.

• PAS 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates,” prescribes the accounting treatment for foreign 
currency transactions and provides guidance on the translation method and on determining the functional and 
presentation currencies of a reporting entity.  The standard removes the limited option in the previous version of 
SFAS 21/IAS 21 to capitalize exchange differences resulting from a severe devaluation or depreciation of a currency 
against which there is no means of hedging.  Under the standard, such exchange differences are now recognized in 
profit or loss since capitalization of such exchange differences is no longer permitted in any circumstances.

• PAS 24 (Revised 2003), “Related Party Disclosures,” provides additional guidance and clarity in the scope of the 
standard, the definitions and the disclosures for related parties. It requires disclosure of the compensation of key 
management personnel.

• PAS 32, “Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation,” prescribes the requirements for the presentation 
of financial instruments and identifies the information that should be disclosed about them.  The presentation 
requirements apply to the classification of financial instruments, from the perspective of the issuer, into financial 
assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments; the classification of related interest, dividends, losses and gains; 
and the circumstances in which financial assets and financial liabilities should be offset.  The standard requires 
disclosure of information about factors that affect the amount, timing and certainty of an entity’s future cash 
flows relating to financial instruments and the accounting policies applied to those instruments.  This standard 
also requires disclosure of information about the nature and extent of an entity’s use of financial instruments, the 
business purposes they serve, the risks associated with them, and management policies for controlling those risks.

• PAS 36 (Revised 2004), “Impairment of Assets,” prescribes the procedures that an entity applies to ensure that 
its assets are carried at no more than their recoverable amount if its carrying amount exceeds the amount to be 
recovered through use or sale of the asset. If this is the case, the asset is described to be impaired and the standard 
requires the entity to recognize an impairment loss. The standard also specifies when an entity should reverse an 
impairment loss previously recognized. The revised standard clarifies the elements that should be reflected in the 
calculation of an asset’s value in use. 

• PAS 39, “Financial Instruments:  Recognition and Measurement,” prescribes the principles for recognizing, 
measuring, and disclosing information about financial assets and financial liabilities.  This standard supplements 
the disclosure provision of PAS 32, Financial Instruments:  Disclosures and Presentation.
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• PAS 40 (Revised 2003), “Investment Property,” provides a limited revision to permit a property interest held by a 
lessee under an operating lease to qualify as investment property under specified conditions. The standard requires a 
property to meet the definition of an investment property and must be accounted for as a finance lease and measured 
using the fair value model.

• PFRS 1, “First Time Adoption of PFRS,” sets out the procedures that an entity must follow when it adopts PFRS 
for the first time as the basis for preparing its general purpose financial statements. It provides guidance on the 
accounting policies, reporting periods, recognition,  derecognition, reclassification and measurement of assets and 
liabilities. The standard sets out optional and mandatory exemptions from the general restatement and measurement 
principles of assets and liabilities. 

Exemptions under PFRS 1 
 
 
In accordance with PFRS 1, “First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards,” which establishes 
the framework for transition to PFRS by a first-time adopter, the Company has elected to avail of a number of 
specified exemptions from the general principle of retrospective restatement as follows:

a. Fair value as deemed cost: The Company chose to measure property and equipment at fair value at the date 
of transition to PFRS which is subsequently considered deemed cost at this date and the basis of subsequent 
depreciation. 

b. Employee benefits: The corridor method has been applied prospectively which means that on the date of 
transition to PFRS any cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses were set to zero by setting them 
off against equity. 

c. Financial instruments: The Company adopted PAS 32, “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation,” 
and PAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,” from January 1, 2005, with no restatement 
of comparative information. Therefore, financial instruments in the comparative 2004 period continue to be 
recorded under Philippine GAAP basis. With effect from January 1, 2005, the Company reclassified various 
financial instruments as available-for-sale investments at fair value with changes made through the equity 
account.

• PFRS 5, “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations,” adopts the classification “held for sale” 
and introduces the concept of a disposal group by sale together as a group in a single transaction and liabilities 
directly associated with those assets that will be transferred. It specifies that assets or disposal groups classified 
as held for sale be carried at lower of carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell and not be depreciated. 
It requires that assets classified as held for sale and the assets and liabilities included within a disposal group 
classified as held for sale be presented separately on the face of the balance sheet. 

Prospective Adoption

PFRS 6, “Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources,” specifies the financial reporting for the exploration for 
and evaluation of mineral resources. It requires:  a) limited improvements to existing accounting practices for exploration 
and evaluation expenditures; b) entities that recognize exploration and evaluation assets to assess such assets for 
impairment in accordance with PAS 36, Impairment of Assets; c) disclosures that identify and explain the amounts in 
the entity’s financial statements arising from the exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources and help users of 
those financial statements understand the amount, timing and certainty of future cash flows  from any exploration and 
evaluation assets recognized. 

The prospective adoption of PFRS 6 will not have a significant impact on the financial position, results of operations and 
statement of cash flows of the entity.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 
 
The preparation of the financial statements resulted in changes to the accounting policies from the most recent annual 
financial statements prepared under previous Philippine GAAP.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements 
and in preparing an opening PFRS balance sheet at January 1, 2004  for purposes of the transition to PFRS.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for 
goods and services provided in the normal course of business.

Sale of steam is recognized when the steam generated by the Company or its by-product passes to the flowmeters 
installed at the interface point for conversion by the buyer into power use for a consideration called the sales price, net of 
sales discounts in case of generation beyond the contracted capacity.  

Sale of electricity is consummated whenever the electricity generated by the Company was transmitted to the transmission 
line of the buyer for a consideration. 

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective 
interest rate applicable.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as Lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Company’s net 
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate 
of return on the Company’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 

The Company as Lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Company at their fair value or, if lower, at the present 
value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the 
lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance 
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability. Finance charges are charged directly against income, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in 
which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on borrowing costs.

Build-Operate-Transfer (BOT) Projects

The Company adopts the finance lease accounting method for its BOT projects. Under this method, the present value of 
the stream of future cash payments (for capital cost recovery fee) during the ten-year cooperation period is recognized 
as the capitalized cost of the BOT plant and the corresponding liability is set up. The capitalized cost will be amortized as 
depreciation expense over the useful life of the asset.

Financial Assets 

Financial assets are recognized on the Company’s balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an 
insignificant risk of change in value.

Cash-Restricted

Cash-restricted is composed of investments in money market instruments which are intended to meet specific fund 
requirements, i.e. financing foreign exchange requirements, payment of indebtedness, etc.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for doubtful accounts.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is established when there is a basis to doubt the collectibility of accounts receivable 
and is computed based on the aging schedule of the outstanding receivable using the following percentages prescribed 
by the Company:

                                Overdue Aging       Allowance rate

   121 days  – 1 year    15% 

   over 1 year  – 2 years  35%

   over 2 years – 3 years  75%

   over 3 years   100% 

The adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts is reviewed yearly.

Investments

Investments are recognized and derecognized on the settlement date where a purchase or sale of an investment is under 
a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and 
are initially measured at cost, plus directly attributable transaction costs. 

Investments are classified as available-for-sale and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value. Gains and 
losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized directly in equity, until the security is disposed of or is determined 
to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is included in the net profit or 
loss for the period. 

Parts and Supplies Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes invoice amount, net of trade and cash 
discounts. Cost is calculated using the moving average method. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling 
price less all estimated costs to sell. 

Investment Property

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is stated at cost, less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method based on the 30 years estimated useful life of the building.

The useful life and method of depreciation are reviewed periodically to ensure that the period and method of depreciation 
are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of investment property.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are initially measured at cost, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. The cost of an asset consists of its purchase price and costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its 
working condition for its intended use. 

Subsequent expenditures relating to an item of property and equipment that have already been recognized are added to 
the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally assessed 
standard of performance of the existing asset, will flow to the Company. All other subsequent expenditures are recognized 
as expenses in the period in which those are incurred.

Major spare parts and stand-by equipment qualify as property and equipment when the Company expects to use them for 
more than one period.  Similarly, if the spare parts and servicing equipment can be used only in connection with an item 
of property and equipment, they are accounted for as property and equipment. 

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 5-30 years
Exploration, machinery and equipment 2-10 years
Furniture, fixtures & equipment 3-10 years
Laboratory equipment 5-10 years
Transportation equipment 5 years

The useful life and method of depreciation are reviewed periodically to ensure that the period and method of depreciation 
are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment. 

Construction in progress is stated at cost and is not depreciated until such time that the assets are completed and/or put 
into operational use.

Stand-by equipment is depreciated from the date it is made available for use over the shorter of the life of the stand-
by equipment or the life of the asset for which the stand-by equipment is part of while major spare parts should be 
depreciated over the period starting when it is brought into service, continuing over the lesser of its useful life and the 
remaining expected useful life of the asset to which it relates. 

Gain or loss arising from the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined by computing the difference between the 
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in income. 

Production Wells

Production wells are initially measured at cost, less any subsequent accumulated amortization and impairment losses. 
The cost of an asset includes all operating and non-operating costs pertaining to the wells hooked to the fluid collection 
and re-injection system (FCRS) of the operating plants and those which are utilized either for re-injection or waste 
disposal, and provided with the appropriate amortization over the useful life of the property.  

Upon commercial operation of a plant, all drilling costs, including related costs, of wells hooked to the FCRS and those wells 
that are to be utilized either for re-injection or waste disposal which are capitalized under exploratory and development 
costs are transferred to Production Wells account and amortized over the estimated useful life of the properties.

The amortization of production wells is computed on the straight-line method based on the estimated useful life of 30 
years.

The direct costs, including related expenses, of wells drilled but not hooked remain in the account “exploratory and 
development costs” until such time those wells are hooked to the operating plants or all the plants under a particular 
service contract area are fully operational and producing and an evaluation as to the economic value of all the remaining 
wells drilled but not hooked to any plant is made. The accumulated direct and related costs of the wells evaluated to have 
an economic value to a plant are transferred under Production Wells   and amortized over the remaining life of the plant 
while wells evaluated to have no economic value are charged outright to expense.

Direct costs and related expenses of wells subsequently drilled in fully operational and producing areas are also capitalized 
under Exploratory and Development Costs and eventually transferred to Production Wells once completed and hooked to 
the operating plants. The direct costs and related expenses of newly hooked wells are amortized over the remaining life 
of the plants where they are attached. 
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Exploratory and Development Costs 

All costs incurred in the geological and geophysical activities such as costs of topographical, geological and geophysical 
studies; rights of access to properties to conduct those studies; salaries and other expenses of geologists, geophysical 
crews, or others conducting those studies are charged outright to expense. 

If the results of initial geological and geophysical activities reveal the presence of geothermal resource that will require 
further exploration and drilling, subsequent exploration and drilling costs are accumulated and deferred.  These costs 
include the following: 

a. costs associated with the acquisition of leases;

b. costs of drilling exploratory and exploratory-type stratigraphic test wells, pending determination of whether the well 
can produce proved reserves and;

c. costs of local administration, finance, general and security services, surface facilities and other local costs in 
preparing for and supporting the drilling activities, etc. incurred during the drilling of exploratory wells. 

After tests conducted on the exploratory wells drilled reveal that the well cannot produce proved reserves, the capitalized 
costs, net of any salvage value, are charged to expense except when management decides to use the unproductive well 
for re-injection or waste disposal.

On the other hand, wells that have commercial steam quantity and good steam quality are further developed and costs 
associated with these wells are accumulated and deferred. These costs, which are eventually classified as Production 
Wells, include the following: 

a. costs of drilling exploratory and exploratory-type stratigraphic test wells, pending determination of whether the well 
can produce proved reserves and those wells which do not produce proved reserves but which management decided 
to utilize as re-injection wells or as waste disposal wells; 

b. allocated costs from Management Service groups and Geothermal Division during the project development stage; 

c. costs of local administration, finance, general and security services, surface facilities and other local costs in preparing 
for and supporting the drilling activities, etc. incurred during the development drilling activities of production, re-
injection or waste disposal wells; 

d. costs incurred in the construction and commissioning of the fluid collection and re-injection system (FCRS); and 

e. borrowing costs on loans utilized for the project.

Upon commercial operation of a plant, all costs of wells hooked to the FCRS and those wells that are to be utilized for 
waste disposal are capitalized (shown as part of Production Wells) and depreciated over the estimated useful life of the 
property.

The costs of wells drilled but not hooked remain in the account “exploratory and development costs” until such time those 
wells are hooked to the operating plants or all the plants under a particular service contract area are fully operational 
and producing and an evaluation as to the economic value of all the remaining wells drilled but not hooked to any plant 
is made. The accumulated costs of the wells evaluated to have an economic value to a plant are transferred under 
Production Wells and amortized over the remaining life of the plant while wells evaluated to have no economic value are 
charged outright to expense.

Costs of wells subsequently drilled in fully operational and producing areas are capitalized and depreciated over the 
remaining life of the plant it will serve. Costs of work-over on wells supporting an operating plant are charged to 
expense.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets 
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of 
those assets, until such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned 
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the 
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the 
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it 
further excludes items that are neither taxable nor deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using 
the applicable tax  rates. 

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is 
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable 
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be 
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is 
realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited 
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Impairment of Assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there 
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount 
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When the asset  generates cash 
flows that are dependent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating 
unit to which the asset belongs. An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for impairment annually and 
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows 
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized as 
an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is 
treated as a revaluation decrease.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased 
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (cash-generating unit) in 
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at 
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Non-current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to 
sell.

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction 
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the 
asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale that should be 
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.
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Financial Liability and Equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements 
entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after 
deducting all of its liabilities.

Trade Payables

Trade payables are stated at their nominal value.

Bank Borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans are recorded at face value under the long-term debt account. Direct issue costs are charged 
directly to expense as incurred. Outstanding balances of bank borrowings denominated in foreign currencies are restated 
using the prevailing rate of exchange at balance sheet date.

Foreign Currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Philippine peso are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of 
the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies 
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair 
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was 
determined. Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in net profit or loss for the period, except for exchange 
differences arising on non-monetary assets and liabilities where the changes in fair value are recognized directly in 
equity.

Retirement Benefit Costs

For defined benefit retirement benefit plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are amortized 
over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plan. The amortized portion of 
these actuarial gains and losses is recognized as income or expense for the period.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized actuarial gains and losses and as reduced by 
the fair value of plan assets. 
 
 

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
 
This account consists of the following:

         2005   2004
Cash on hand and in banks ¥   488,683,210 ¥  72,064,486
Cash equivalents 3,961,406,735 774,255,479
      Total ¥4,450,089,945 ¥846,319,965

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents consist of money market placements 
which are made for varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company 
and earned interest of ¥438,752,858 in 2005 and ¥409,457,904 in 2004.
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6. CASH – RESTRICTED 
 
 
This account pertains to the balance of the proceeds of the US$75 million 5-year Term Loan Facility from Standard 
Chartered Bank acquired on August 4, 2004 and invested in fixed term deposits with the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas. The 
loan is intended for the payment of indebtedness due and payable under certain build-operate-transfer (BOT) contracts. 
This account was fully drawn on October 3, 2005. 

7. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES  
 
 
This account consists of the following:

         2005      2004
Trade ¥4,371,867,879 ¥4,125,962,026
Others 239,083,089 341,984,606

Total 4,610,950,968 4,467,946,632
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts 11,535,814 11,684,040
      Net ¥4,599,415,154 ¥4,456,262,592

In 2004, the Department of Energy (DOE) had held mediation meetings between PNOC-EDC and NPC in order to mediate 
and amicably settle the long outstanding PNOC-EDC and NPC disputes and recommended actions and decisions 
appropriate under the circumstances. Among the major issues were the Unified Leyte nominated energy underpayments, 
the Tongonan I  unpaid shortfall generation billings and the Bacman I steam billing adjustments due to the revision of the 
National Statistics Office (NSO) index.

The resolutions adopted following the mediation conducted by the DOE on NPC and PNOC-EDC’s contract implementation 
issues resulted to NPC’s recognition of ¥2.4 billion net payable to PNOC-EDC based on the November 2003 balances. 
In as much as there are still outstanding issues remaining, a global settlement meeting is being arranged by the DOE 
between NPC and PNOC-EDC for the final settlement of the issues and the mode of payment for these items. 

Trade receivables pertain mainly to billings to NPC for the sale of electricity and steam production supplied to their 
power plants. These trade receivables already reflected the net adjustments in NPC receivables totaling ¥1,074,273,281  
as a result of  the DOE-mediated resolution of PNOC-EDC and NPC contract implementation issues. The bulk of the 
adjustments amounting to ¥758,757,725  pertained to Unified Leyte agreed nominated energy of 4,370 GWh per year for 
the period July 25, 2000 to July 25, 2004. 

The increase in trade receivables is mainly due to the increased average steam/electricity sales price caused by higher 
inflation indices this year.

Other receivables comprise mainly of receivables from the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR), employees, contractors and 
suppliers. 

The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the Company’s 
management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic environment.
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8. PARTS AND SUPPLIES INVENTORIES
 
 
This account consists of the following:

           2005              2004
Landed ¥907,524,111 ¥1,018,814,165
In transit 49,238,761 31,385,805
     Total ¥956,762,872 ¥1,050,199,970

The Company’s parts and supplies inventories include purchases from foreign and local suppliers. Cost represents 
invoice amount, net of trade and cash discounts.

Landed inventories include items already received by the warehouse and available for issuance to end-users while in-
transit inventories include items not yet delivered or received by the warehouse but ownership or title to the goods already 
passes to PNOC-EDC.

The amount of landed inventories is net of uninstalled inventory of major spare parts for the FCRS such as valve assemblies 
which the Company classified into Property and Equipment (Notes 12 and 49). 

Also, the Company derecognized the ¥163,754,801 allowance for obsolescence provided as of December 31, 2004 with 
respect to the conversion to PFRS. PAS 2 requires the inventories to be valued at lower of costs or net realizable value 
(NRV). The Company valued the parts and supplies inventories at cost (Note 49).

9. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
 
 
This account consists of the following: 

             2005             2004
Advances to contractor ¥510,664,066 ¥          540,750
Prepaid expenses 19,810,742 253,767,597
Bonds and other investments - 2,727,564,371
      Total ¥530,474,808 ¥2,981,872,718

 
The decrease in other current assets was mainly brought about by the reclassification of bonds  and other investments to 
the new account “investments in available-for-sale securities” in compliance with PAS 32 and PAS 39 (Note 49). 

Advances to contractor largely pertained to the 25% advance payment to Kanematsu Corporation for the Northern Negros 
Geothermal Power Plant Project while the prepaid expenses represent the unamortized advanced guarantee fee payment 
for long-term loans.
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10. INVESTMENTS IN AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES  
 
 
This account consists of the following:

             2005   2004

 Bonds and other investments ¥2,726,590,586 -

The investments included above pertain to investments in long-term government debt securities (peso and foreign-
currency denominated) which were reclassified to the new account “investment in available-for-sale securities in 
compliance with PAS 32 and PAS 39 (Note 49). The fair values of these securities are based on quoted market prices as at 
balance sheet date. Unrealized holding gain on  bonds and other investments  reached ¥105,346,406.

11. INVESTMENTS AT COST
 
 
This account consists of the following:

            2005            2004
NRMDC ¥45,000,000 ¥45,000,000
Kenmare Gold (unquoted shares) 62,500                        -
     Total ¥45,062,500 ¥45,000,000

Pursuant to the Memorandum dated April 9, 2003 of Her Excellency Gloria Macapagal-Arroyo, President of the Republic 
of the Philippines, PNOC-EDC and Natural Resources Development Corporation (NRDC), the Department of Environment 
and Natural Resources’  (DENR)  corporate arm, was authorized to incorporate, and invest in the equity of Natural 
Resources Mining Development Corporation (NRMDC). NRMDC shall be engaged in mining and is being programmed to 
explore and exploit the gold resources initially in Mt. Diwalwal.  Under such presidential directive, the NRMDC shall have 
an authorized capital stock of ¥100 million, 55% of which shall be owned by DENR’s NRDC and 45% by PNOC-EDC.

Subsequently, PNOC-EDC Board Resolution No. 33, Series of 2004 approved PNOC-EDC’s investment of ¥45,000,000, by 
way of equity, in the NRMDC.

On August 24, 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved NRMDC’s increase in authorized capital 
stock to ¥125 million. The ¥25 million increase was provided by the National Development Company (NDC), corporate arm 
of the Department of Trade and Industry (DTI). Of the ¥125 million total capitalization, 44% is owned by DENR’s NRDC, 
36% by PNOC-EDC and 20% by DTI’s NDC.

DENR’s NRDC is the dominant interest, in terms of holdings and management oversight in the corporation as well 
as strategic directions and review of the NRMDC management’s work program and directions through the operational 
relationship of the DENR and its monitoring bureaus and units of NRMDC. On the other hand, PNOC-EDC and DTI’s 
NDC interests in NRMDC are that of the financial investors, thus these companies do not exercise significant influence.  
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12. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

This account consists of the following:  

 

Buildings 
and

Improvements

Exploration 
Machinery & 
Equipment

Transportation 
Equipment

Furniture, 
Fixtures & 
Equipment

Laboratory 
Equipment

Major Spare 
Parts

Land, 
Leases & 

Improvement
Construction in 

Progress Total

COST 

January 1, 2005    ¥13,716,518,518 ¥1,701,645,867    ¥293,321,410   ¥251,042,330      ¥103,615,634 ¥28,208,384 ¥1,686,214,172   ¥459,308,520   ¥18,239,874,835

Additions - - -            190,031   -     6,858,000          26,734,830      584,767,059          618,549,920

Reclassifications        247,111,387        10,455,970          5,128,999       20,296,362           4,601,527  (15,534,506)             (11,172)   (439,824,150)        (167,775,583)

Disposals           (9,750,621)       (15,140,076)         (9,343,544)      (12,822,900)          (1,366,980) - - -        ( 48,424,121)

December 31, 2005 13,953,879,284 1,696,961,761  289,106,865      258,705,823       106,850,181   19,531,878    1,712,937,830      604,251,429     18,642,225,051

 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

January 1, 2005   (3,764,852,815)      (982,414,693)     (220,836,641)     (217,961,931)        (87,572,926) - - - (5,273,639,006)

Provision      (753,769,929)      (110,853,440)       (37,256,459)       (22,735,186)          (5,486,850) - - - (930,101,864)

Disposals           5,533,949         14,953,723          9,102,027         12,757,869             1,366,913 - - -            43,714,481

December 31, 2005   (4,513,088,795)  (1,078,314,410)     (248,991,073)     (227,939,248)        (91,692,863) - - - (6,160,026,389)

Carrying Amount,
December 31, 2005 ¥ 9,440,790,489 ¥    618,647,351 ¥   40,115,792      ¥30,766,575       ¥15,157,318 ¥19,531,878 ¥1,712,937,830 ¥604,251,429 ¥12,482,198,662

Carrying Amount,
December 31, 2004 ¥ 9,951,665,703 ¥   719,231,174 ¥   72,484,769      ¥33,080,399       ¥16,042,708 ¥28,208,384 ¥1,686,214,172

  
 ¥459,308,520 ¥12,966,235,829

Management has opted to measure its property and equipment, as well as land and buildings, at the date of transition to 
PFRS at fair value, and use that fair value as deemed cost at that date (Note 49).

This account includes uninstalled inventory of major spare parts for the FCRS such as valve assemblies which the 
Company reclassified from Parts and Supplies Inventories (Notes 8 and 49).

In 2003, the Company engaged the services of Multi-Appraisal Inc. for the revaluation of the office and transportation 
equipment as of December 31, 2003. Meanwhile, in November 2004, the Asian Appraisal Company, Inc. was engaged by 
the Company to revalue its land, buildings and improvements, rigs, machinery and equipment, and heavy equipment.

 Subsequently, the appraiser issued a certification that they had conducted the valuation of fixed assets exhibited to them 
as owned by the Company with Cost of Reproduction (New) of ¥37,727,647,000 and Fair Value of ¥25,525,291,000 as of 
November 19, 2004 and that there would be no significant changes in the values if the cut-off was set to January 1, 2004. 

This certification is the basis of the Company to book fair value of the assets as deemed cost as of January 1, 2004. 

Depreciation expenses amounted to ¥876,190,075 in 2005 and ¥854,350,133 in 2004, excluding depreciation charged to 
exploratory and development costs amounting to ¥53,911,789 in 2005 and ¥30,231,889 in 2004. Total costs of assets retired/
written-off amounted to ¥4,709,640 in 2005 and ¥1,225,607 in 2004 – net of ¥43,714,481 and ¥86,692,390 accumulated 
depreciation, respectively. 

Management believes that, based on the assessment performed, there are no assets found impaired.
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13. PRODUCTION WELLS
 
 
This account consists of the following:

 Amount

COST 

January 1, 2005 ¥17,553,806,386

Additions 368,003,604

December 31, 2005  17,921,809,990

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION

January 1, 2005 5,359,563,693

Provision 602,966,406

December 31, 2005 5,962,530,099

CARRYING AMOUNT, December 31, 2005 ¥11,959,279,891

CARRYING AMOUNT, December 31, 2004 ¥12,194,242,693

Amortization expenses of ¥602,966,406 in 2005 and ¥638,531,301 in 2004 have been charged to cost of sales.  
Total costs of wells attached to the FCRS amounted to ¥368,003,604 in 2005 and ¥278,396,903 in 2004.

Management believes that, based on the assessment performed, there are no assets found impaired.

14. BOT POWER PLANTS  
 
 
This account pertains to the capitalized present value of the stream of future cash payments (for capital cost recovery 
(CCR) fees) for the BOT power plants during the ten-year cooperation period discounted at the buy-out rate indicated in 
the BOT contracts.

This account consists of the capitalized costs of the following BOT power plants:

 Malitbog Mahanagdong Upper Mahiao Mindanao I Mindanao II
Tongonan I 

Optimization Total

COST 

January 1 ¥12,287,865,263 ¥7,853,473,973 ¥3,670,775,022 ¥2,186,029,391 ¥2,798,177,959 ¥470,881,120 ¥29,267,202,728

Additions - - - - - - -

Disposals - - - - - - -

December 31 12,287,865,263 7,853,473,973  3,670,775,022  2,186,029,391 2,798,177,959 470,881,120  29,267,202,728

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

January 1 3,193,376,184 1,966,733,777 1,052,722,755 571,867,873 522,335,241 115,104,273 7,422,140,103

Provision 409,585,444 261,504,545 122,243,686 72,819,317 93,208,575 15,696,037 975,057,604

Impairment Loss - - - - - - -

Disposals - - - - - - -

December 31 3,602,961,628  2,228,238,322  1,174,966,441 644,687,190 615,543,816 130,800,310  8,397,197,707

Carrying Amount,        
Dec. 31, 2005 ¥8,684,903,635 ¥5,625,235,651 ¥2,495,808,581 ¥1,541,342,201 ¥2,182,634,143 ¥340,080,810 ¥20,870,005,021

Carrying Amount,
December 31, 2004 ¥9,094,489,079 ¥5,886,740,196 ¥2,618,052,267 ¥1,614,161,518 ¥2,275,842,718 ¥355,776,847 ¥21,845,062,625



48/49

Depreciation expenses amounted to ¥975,057,604 in 2005 and ¥975,358,499 in 2004 which have been charged to cost of 
sales.

The corresponding liability account set up for BOT Power Plants is the BOT Lease Obligations.

Management believes that, based on the assessment performed, there are no assets found impaired.

15. EXPLORATORY AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS 
 
 
Deferred costs of exploration and development pertain to the following project areas:

       2005       2004
Northern Negros ¥3,443,029,257 ¥2,844,544,685
Malitbog 483,473,760 376,456,052
Cabalian, So. Leyte 269,467,788 259,540,260
Upper Mahiao 212,765,481                   -
Mahanagdong 143,077,033 201,716,454
Mindanao  53,197,601 49,537,302
Ilocos Norte 39,558,144 39,019,962
Bacman-Tanawon 37,204,177 35,326,872
Tongonan                   - 93,257,527
Other areas 54,529,919 42,442,515
       Total ¥4,736,303,160 ¥3,941,841,629

The increase in exploratory and development costs was mainly due to the ¥1,162,465,136 additional development and 
drilling costs in the geothermal projects mainly in Northern Negros,  Upper Mahiao and Malitbog in  Leyte and Cabalian, 
So. Leyte reduced by the ¥368,003,605 costs of five (5) wells hooked to the operating plants which were transferred to 
production wells.

The exploratory and development costs include capitalized borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get 
ready for their intended use or sale. 

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 
 
 
This account consists of the following: 

Land Building Total

Cost

At January 1, 2005 ¥272,945,855 ¥7,682,563 ¥280,628,418

Accumulated depreciation        - 853,618 853,618

Carrying Amount, 
December 31, 2005 ¥272,945,855 ¥6,828,945 ¥279,774,800

Carrying Amount,
December 31, 2004 ¥272,945,855 ¥7,682,563 ¥280,628,418
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The value of the Company’s investment property at December 31, 2005 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation 
carried out at November 19, 2004, certified by the Asian Appraisal Company to be without material variation if cut-off is 
set on January 1, 2004.  The said valuation was treated as deemed costs upon transition to PFRS and was arrived at by 
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties (Note 49).

Depreciation expenses amounting to ¥853,618 in 2005 and ¥887,436 in 2004 have been charged to operating expenses.

Management believes that, based on the assessment performed, there are no assets found impaired.

17. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
 
 
This account consists of the following:

           2005       2004

Long-term receivables ¥4,394,666,305 ¥4,492,695,695

Deferred royalty fee 697,795,289 425,227,005

Prepaid expenses 457,486,009                -

Guarantee fee – Miyazawa II 452,552,486 504,217,514

Special deposits & funds 22,851,782 15,756,001

Investments in available-for-sale securities 12,182,285 -

Cash collateral on PCIR Bonds 4,415,325 4,172,490

Others 35,196,737 124,418,753

6,077,146,218 5,566,487,458

Less:  Allowance for doubtful accounts 4,023,374,575 3,982,145,022

       Net ¥2,053,771,643 ¥1,584,342,436

Long-term receivables mainly pertain to the long overdue account from NPC amounting to ¥204,121,429 in 2005 and 
¥123,506,946 in 2004 (net of the allowance for doubtful accounts amounting to ¥1,339,001,734 in 2005 and ¥1,395,658,362 
in 2004) and the total claims receivables from the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) for the refund of input VAT on BOT 
fees amounting to ¥74,945,130 in 2005 and ¥286,821,857 in 2004 (net of allowance for doubtful accounts amounting to 
¥2,632,061,435 in 2005 and ¥2,550,076,152 in 2004).

On July 2, 2002, the BIR regional level initially denied PNOC-EDC’s claims for the refund of input VAT on BOT fees 
amounting to ¥1,894,478,700. Subsequently, PNOC-EDC submitted a letter of reconsideration on September 2, 2002. RDO 
50 endorsed the request for reconsideration to the BIR legal department for an opinion. 

On January 31, 2006, the Company received tax credit certificate (TCC) pertaining to input VAT  claims  amounting to 
¥811,222,563.84. (Note 44)

Guarantee fee on Miyazawa II pertains to the upfront fees subject to amortization starting on the 5th year towards the end 
of the 10-year loan period.

Prepaid expenses pertain to the non-current portion of the 25% advance payment to Kanematsu Corporation for the 
construction of Northern Negros Geothermal Power Plant Project.

The special deposits and funds mainly consisted of the ¥10 million sinking fund required by the Department of Finance 
to cover the long-term loans payment.

The investment in available-for-sale securities  account pertained to other investments which afford the Company with 
opportunity for return through capital appreciation and trading gains. This account is quoted in fair market value based 
on market prices as at balance sheet date.  
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18. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
 
 
This account consists of the following: 

         2005     2004
Materials and supplies inventory for disposal ¥3,420,946 ¥34,682,390
Surplus property available for sale 1,336,526     -
      Total ¥4,757,472 ¥34,682,390

            

The decrease in materials and supplies inventory for disposal was mainly due to its sale in 2005.

Management believes that, based on the assessment performed, there are no assets found impaired.

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
 
 
This account consists of the following: 

2005 2004
Accounts payable – trade ¥3,229,261,853 ¥2,578,357,984
Accrued interest 649,419,909 584,716,848
Withholding and other taxes 158,112,173 84,316,319
Deferred credits 64,639,428 92,945,959
SSS and other contributions 23,877,693 40,482,316
Liability for annuity – current 9,580,927 34,324,975
Miscellaneous current liabilities 3,400,529 587,799
      Total ¥4,138,292,512 ¥3,415,732,200

Accounts payable – trade is comprised mainly of the accrued capacity fees for BOT plants which increased in 2005 on 
account of the increase in accrual for BOT lease obligations due to the delayed payment of November 2005 billings for 
Malitbog, Mahanagdong and Upper Mahiao power plants.

Liability for annuity – current pertains to the computed sick leave, vacation leave and separation benefits of employees 
who will retire in 2006, while the liability to employees who will retire in the succeeding years is presented under long-
term liabilities.

20. ROYALTY FEE PAYABLE  
 
 
This account consists of the following:

      2005     2004
Due LGUs ¥    413,194,966 ¥   272,996,476
Due DOE 1,729,978,668 1,396,281,737
Total 2,143,173,634 1,669,278,213
Less:  Current portion 613,194,966 472,996,476
Long-term portion ¥1,529,978,668 ¥1,196,281,737
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21. BOT LEASE OBLIGATIONS  
 
 
This account consists of the following:

Minimum
 Lease Payments

Present Value of Minimum
 Lease Payments

2005 2004 2005 2004
Amounts payable under finance leases:
Within one year ¥5,538,025,533 ¥7,442,766,514 ¥5,058,280,501 ¥6,352,690,167
In the second to fourth years 

inclusive 2,934,961,447 8,979,356,814 2,777,311,576 8,319,071,616

Less: Future finance charges 637,394,903 1,750,361,545               -                -

Present value of lease 
obligations 7,835,592,077 14,671,761,783 7,835,592,077 14,671,761,783

Less: Amount due for settlement 
within 12 months (shown 
under current liabilities) 5,058,280,501 6,352,690,167 5,058,280,501 6,352,690,167

Amount due for settlement after 
12 months ¥2,777,311,576 ¥8,319,071,616 ¥2,777,311,576 ¥8,319,071,616

This account pertains to the liability set up for the present value of the stream of future cash payments [for capital cost 
recovery (CCR) fees] for the BOT power plants during the ten-year cooperation period discounted at the buy-out rate 
indicated in the BOT contracts. The BOT lease obligations are denominated in US dollar and realigned to Philippine peso 
based on the year-end closing rate at the balance sheet date. 

22. LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
 
The Company’s foreign obligations were translated into Philippine pesos  based on the prevailing foreign exchange rates 
at year-end (USD1=JP¥117.855  : USD1=PHP53.062     in 2005 and USD1=JP¥103.05: USD1=PHP56.341 in 2004).

The Company’s long-term debt are detailed, as follows:  

CREDITOR/PROJECT MATURITIES INTEREST RATE 2005 2004

IBRD
2969 PH Bacon-Manito Geothermal 
Power Plant 
– US$41 million 1994 to 2008

½ of 1% over cost of 
qualified borrowings ¥700,991,542 ¥1,048,272,993

3164 PH Energy Sector Loan 
– US$118 million 1995 to 2010

½ of 1% over cost of 
qualified borrowings 2,613,720,357 3,585,115,582

3702 PH Geothermal Exploration 
Project 
– US$64 million 1999 to 2013

½ of 1% over cost of 
qualified borrowings 1,751,831,109 2,217,931,876

3747 PH Geothermal Exploration 
Project 
- US$114 million 
- ¥12.4 billion 1999 to 2014

½ of 1% over cost of 
qualified borrowings / 3.5%

1,950,460,737
1,573,036,407

2,455,434,135
2,136,193,465

OECF
8th Yen Tongonan I Geothermal Power 
Plant (share in OECF-NPC loan)
- ¥5.8 billion
- ¥1.5 billion (Restructured) 1990 to 2010

3%
3.2%

577,411,044
210,575,227

856,944,558
295,086,796
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CREDITOR/PROJECT MATURITIES INTEREST RATE 2005 2004

9th Yen Palinpinon I Geothermal 
Power Plant
- ¥ 10.8 billion 1991 to 2011 3% 1,028,717,214 1,476,340,559
15th Yen Palinpinon I Geothermal 
Power Plant
- ¥4.0 billion 1999 to 2019 5.7% 943,362,515 1,230,418,142
18th Yen Palinpinon II Geothermal 
Power Plant
- ¥77.4 million 2003 to 2023 3% 29,739,136 38,177,010

19th Yen Mt. Labo Geothermal Project
- ¥10.8 billion 2004 to 2024 4.9% 133,568,251 170,733,801

21st Yen No. Negros Geothermal 
Project
- ¥14.5 billion, of which ¥2.0 billion 

was drawn during the year 2007 to 2027 2.7%/2.3% 2,056,852,409 1,403,635,238

National Government
Principal Collateralized Interest 
Reduction Bonds (PCIRB)
- US328 thousand 1992 to 2017

Year 1 - 4 ¼%
2 - 5 ¼%
3 - 5 ¾%

4-5 - 6 ¼%
6-25 – 6 ½% 17,399,574 18,474,792

Miyazawa I
- ¥5.2 billion
- ¥6.8 billion June 1, 2009

Tranche A=3.78%
Tranche B=LIBOR + 1.60%

2,341,201,564 2,843,011,933
3,061,571,276 3,717,784,835

Miyazawa II
- ¥22.0 billion June 26, 2010 2.37% 9,905,083,540 12,028,127,408
JP Morgan Chase Manhattan
- US$110 million Oct. 19, 2006 3.85% + LIBOR (2.42375) 1,167,364,000 2,479,004,000
Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi
- US$30 million Dec. 14, 2006 3.85% + LIBOR (1.90875) 318,372,000 676,092,000
US$90 Million Five Years 
Guaranteed Loan Facility
- US$45.7 million

- US$44.3 million Feb. 21, 2008

Tranche 1=3.70% + 6 mos. 
LIBOR

Tranche 2=3.39% + 6 mos. 
LIBOR

2,424,933,400

2,350,646,600

2,574,783,700

2,495,906,300
Land Bank of the Phils.
- ¥1.5 Billion June 29, 2008 Ave. 91-day T-Bills +  2% 1,387,500,000 100,000,000
Standard Chartered Bank
-US$75 million August 4, 2009 LIBOR + 2.22% 3,979,650,000 4,225,575,000

Total ¥40,523,987,902 ¥48,073,044,123

Less: Current portion ¥  4,616,888,191 ¥  3,378,922,463

Long-term portion ¥35,907,099,711 ¥44,694,121,660
  

23. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
 
This account consists of accrued vacation and sick leave cumulative balances as of balance sheet date that can be carried 
over beyond 12 months.
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24. CAPITAL STOCK
 
 
The Company is subject to the nationality requirement that at least sixty percent (60%) of its capital stock must be owned 
by Filipino citizens since it is engaged in the exploration and exploitation of the country’s energy resources and other 
mineral resources. The Company’s shares of stocks are 100% owned by PNOC.  

Details are as follows: 

 2005 2004

Capital stock – ¥1,000 par value
Common stock
        Authorized & subscribed - 
        10,000,000 shares ¥10,000,000,000 ¥10,000,000,000

The Company has one class of ordinary shares that carry no right to fixed income.

25. RESERVES
 
 
This account consists of the following:

             2005       2004

Accumulated unrealized gain on investments in 
available-for-sale securities ¥110,309,139 -

This account pertains to the gains on the realignment of investments in bonds and stocks classified as available-for-sale 
securities charged to equity. 

26. NET SALES  
 
 
This account consists of the following:

      2005         2004
Electricity ¥16,455,494,955 ¥15,957,212,444
Steam 4,967,362,240 4,685,671,153
Drilling 149,524,840 1,604,805
     Total ¥21,572,382,035 ¥20,644,488,402
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27. COST OF SALES  
 
 
This account consists of the following:

2005 2004
Purchased services and utilities ¥  5,944,662,791 ¥  7,186,901,528
Depreciation and amortization charges 2,374,500,160 2,374,033,754
Employee costs 1,108,209,003 876,064,339
Royalty fee 528,839,664 373,972,212
Materials and supplies 357,320,853 290,104,558
Maintenance and repairs 259,123,024 261,018,459
Rental, insurance and taxes 125,979,444 139,804,600
Technical support charges 59,086,815 68,567,008
Business and other expenses 38,513,919 29,848,247
      Total ¥10,796,235,673 ¥11,600,314,705

28. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 
 
 
This account consists of the following:

       2005           2004
Interest income – net of final tax ¥368,370,603 ¥   411,728,305
Inflation adjustment on prior year’s electricity sales 171,761,386 -
Inflation adjustment on prior year’s steam sales 118,824,859 -
Miscellaneous income 17,120,054 74,585,474
Adjustment on prior year’s amortization of capitalized          

interest charges 6,411,618 -
Adjustments on prior year’s foreign exchange losses 

on BOT lease obligations               -
 

479,989,743
Adjustments on prior year’s expenses               - 221,882,715
      Total ¥682,488,520 ¥1,188,186,237

This year’s revision of previous year’s NSO index resulted to a credit inflation adjustments for steam and electricity sales 
in contrast to last year’s revision of 2003  NSO index, which resulted to  a debit  inflation adjustments on steam and 
electricity sales. These debit adjustments in 2004 were classified under other operating expenses (Note 30). 

Capitalized interest charges on long-term loans utilized for FCRS acquisition were initially classified under Production 
Wells (PW) and depreciated based on the estimated life of the PW. In 2005, these interest charges were reclassified to 
Property and Equipment (PE) and correspondingly adjusted the prior years’ amortization based on the estimated life of 
the PE.

Adjustments in 2004 on prior year’s foreign exchange loss on BOT lease obligations were brought about by the realignment 
of the principal balance of BOT lease obligations based on the amortization schedule of the obligations.

Adjustments in 2004 on prior year’s expenses mainly came from the adjustments in allowance for doubtful accounts as a 
result of the DOE-mediated resolution of NPC – PNOC-EDC contract implementation issues.
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29. OPERATING EXPENSES 
 
 
This account consists of the following:

       2005          2004
Administrative charges ¥    775,205,084 ¥   960,707,478
Employee costs 426,231,771 381,111,660
Provision for doubtful accounts 238,503,085 301,007,307
Rental, insurance and taxes 163,337,215 228,819,357
Purchased services and utilities 142,345,778 137,685,038
Depreciation 87,001,383 88,911,513
Materials and supplies 39,222,725 28,621,253
Business and other expenses 30,026,319 24,622,397
Maintenance and repairs 10,203,071 11,069,890
Provision for impairment in the value of assets              - 1,816,362
        Total ¥1,912,076,431 ¥2,164,372,255

 
The management reassessed the value of materials for disposal in 2005 to have no impairment as a result of adoption of 
PFRS 1.

30. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 
 
 
This account consists of the following:

   2005      2004

BOT energy fee adjustments on prior year’s excess 
energy generation ¥43,077,748 ¥  68,399,272

Loss on typhoon damages 18,939,216 -
Loss on disposal and sale of assets 13,936,752 9,540,199
Mineral Exploration/North Luzon wind project’s pre-

operating expenses 12,088,516 6,189,789
Miscellaneous expenses 1,744,910 9,611,791
Accelerated amortization of wells/project       - 361,114,717
Inflation adjustment on prior year’s steam sales       - 323,796,262
Inflation adjustment on prior year’s electricity sales       - 20,564,239
       Total ¥89,787,142 ¥799,216,269

In 2004, the Company accelerated the amortization of the cost of one well in NNGP and the Victoria Project’s expenses 
in Tarlac.  
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31. FINANCE COSTS
 
 
This account consists of the following:

2005 2004
Interest on loans ¥2,220,453,119 ¥1,840,310,865
Less: Amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets 110,113,470 19,932,865
       Total ¥2,110,339,649 ¥1,820,378,000

This account pertained to interest charges on long-term loans. The amount included in the cost of qualifying assets 
represents the capitalized interest charges on loans utilized for the development of Northern Negros Geothermal Power 
Plant Project. 

32. FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS (GAIN)
 
 
This account consists of the following: 

2005 2004
Foreign exchange losses (gains) on long-term loans (¥6,583,671,373) ¥2,033,475,304
Foreign exchange losses (gains) on other accounts 165,030,989 (95,310,289)
       Total (¥6,418,640,384) ¥1,938,165,015

This account pertained to foreign exchange losses (gains) on repayment and realignment of foreign loans, short-term 
placements in dollar denomination and cash in banks in US dollar and Japanese yen currencies.  The 2005 foreign exchange 
gain was attributed largely to the realignment of foreign loans because of the depreciation of yen and appreciation of peso 
against the US dollar currency (12/31/2005: US$1=JP¥117.855/PHP53.062 vs. 12/31/2004: US$1=JP¥103.05/PHP56.341).

33. INCOME TAXES
 
 
Components of income tax expense are as follows:

      2005     2004
Current tax ¥1,677,383,618 ¥1,120,406,825
Deferred tax 2,171,591,063      (51,856,074)
      Total ¥3,848,974,681    ¥1,068,550,751

On August 25, 2005, PNOC-EDC received Commissioner of Internal Revenue Jose Mario C. Buñag’s letter dated August 24, 
2005 allowing the Company to use finance lease method of accounting for build-operate-transfer (BOT) transactions.  

As of December 31, 2005, PNOC-EDC has recognized income tax liability under the finance lease method for taxable years 
2004 and 2005 and for deficiency VAT and withholding tax liabilities for the taxable years 2000 to 2004.  
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A numerical reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting income multiplied by tax rates of 32% for 
2004 and 10 months of 2005, and 35% for 2 months of 2005 as follows:

      2005      2004
Accounting income ¥13,765,072,044 ¥3,510,228,395

Tax expense  
at 32% 
at 35% 

¥ 3,670,685,878
802,962,536

¥1,123,273,086
              -

Tax effect of expenses non-deductible interest expense 56,284,818 46,775,739
    Interest income subjected to final tax – net of final tax     (121,088,650)     (101,498,074)

Adjustment on the realignment of deferred tax asset 
balance as of 12/31/2005 at 35% (559,869,901) -

¥3,848,974,681  ¥1,068,550,751

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX
 
 
The analysis of deferred income tax for financial reporting purposes follows:

      2005     2004
Deferred tax assets ¥9,499,547,377 ¥11,253,907,626
Deferred tax liability (5,201,496,321) (4,784,265,508)
      Net ¥4,298,051,056 ¥  6,469,642,118

 
The deferred tax assets mainly consisted of the undepreciated balance of the foreign exchange losses on payment and 
realignment of BOT lease obligations capitalized under BIR reporting, unrealized foreign exchange losses on foreign 
loans and allowance for doubtful accounts. The account was net of deferred tax liability on the deductible expenses 
provided under PD 1442 and the increase in fair value of property and equipment applied as deemed costs recognized 
during the conversion to PFRS.

The following is the composition of deferred income taxes recognized by the Company:

Deferred Tax Assets

Foreign exchange 
losses (gains) -

BOT Power Plants

Unrealized foreign 
exchange losses 

(gains)
Allowance for 

doubtful accounts Others Total

At January 1, 2004 ¥5,917,839,824 ¥4,392,131,375 ¥885,362,155 ¥110,559,874 ¥11,305,893,228

Charge to income for the      
period (325,113,254) 289,923,536 (3,647,276) (13,148,608) (51,985,602)

At January 1, 2005  5,592,726,570    4,682,054,911 881,714,879  97,411,266 11,253,907,626

Charge to income for the   
period (473,169,043) (2,394,281,166) 77,462,684 5,315,440 (2,784,672,085)

Adjustment of deferred tax 
balance as of 12/31/05 at 
35% income tax rate 487,920,497 444,230,715 88,619,438 9,541,186 1,030,311,836

At December 31, 2005 ¥5,607,478,024 ¥2,732,004,460 ¥1,047,797,001 ¥112,267,892 ¥9,499,547,377
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Deferred Tax Liability

Increase in Fair Value 
Applied as Deemed Costs

Deductible Expenses Per 
PD 1442 Total

At January 1, 2004 (¥1,993,157,824)  (¥2,894,949,360) (¥4,888,107,184)

Charge to income for the period                 149,031,811 (45,190,135) 103,841,676

At January 1, 2005 (1,844,126,013) (2,940,139,495) (4,784,265,508)

Charge to income for the period 144,599,215 (91,388,094) 53,211,121
Adjustment of deferred tax 

balance as of 12/31/05 at 35% 
income tax rate (187,615,801) (282,826,133) (470,441,932)

At December 31, 2005  (¥1,887,142,599) (¥3,314,353,722) (¥5,201,496,321)
 

 Deferred Tax Assets Deferred Tax Liability
 Net 

Deferred Tax Assets 

At January 1, 2004 ¥11,305,893,228 (¥4,888,107,184) ¥6,417,786,044

Charge to income for the period (51,985,602) 103,841,676 51,856,074

At January 1, 2005 11,253,907,626 (4,784,265,508) 6,469,642,118

Charge to income for the period (2,784,672,085) 53,211,121 (2,731,460,964)
Adjustment of deferred tax 

balance as of 12/31/05 at 35% 
income tax rate 1,030,311,836 (470,441,934) 559,869,902

At December 31, 2005 ¥9,499,547,377 (¥5,201,496,321) ¥4,298,051,056

35.  RESTRUCTURING COSTS 
 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors approved in a special meeting on October 22, 2004 the Manpower Reduction Program 
(MRP) for implementation effective November 2004 to October 31, 2005.  

The program covers employees who are 50 years old and above as of October 31, 2005 and have rendered at least 10 
years of service during the period of implementation, and employees specifically identified as excess as a result of the 
Company’s reorganization in 2003. The MRP offered the qualified employees a financial package of 2.5 months base pay 
(12/12) as of December 31, 2004, multiplied by the service years.

There were 298 employees who availed of the MRP in 2005 with the total cost of ¥1,026,761,054. Of this amount, 
¥613,828,273 pertained to the retirement costs of 193 employees who were at least 50 years old (covering only two months 
base pay out of the 2.5 financial package multiplied by the service years) which were charged to the retirement fund while 
the ¥412,932,781 cost of 105 employees who were below 50 years old  including the 0.5 month base pay differential of 
separated employees aging at least 50 years old   were expensed in 2005.

36. STAFF COSTS
 
 
This account consists of the following:

      2005      2004
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
   Salaries and other benefits ¥1,905,208,595 ¥1,926,364,360
   Retirement benefit costs (see Note 42 ) 504,917,081 232,663,015
   Social security costs 35,626,807 36,415,498
          Total ¥2,445,752,483 ¥2,195,442,873
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37. SERVICE CONTRACTS 
 
 
By virtue of PD 1442, the Company entered into seven service contracts with the DOE granting the Company the right to 
explore, develop, and utilize the country’s geothermal resource subject to sharing of net proceeds with the government. 
The net proceeds is what remains after deducting from the gross proceeds the allowable recoverable costs, which include 
development, production and operating costs. 

The allowable recoverable costs shall not exceed 90% of the gross proceeds. The Company pays 60% of the net proceeds 
as government share and retains the remaining 40%.

The 60% government share is comprised of royalty fees and income taxes. The royalty fees are shared by the government 
through DOE (60%) and the LGU (40%).

The Company secured an approval from the DOE to defer remittance of the royalty portion of the government share 
at ¥180 million per year. A portion of said payment was applied to the amortization of the deferred royalty fees as of 
December 31, 1998, and the balance to 1999 and future obligations. On March 23, 2004, the Company and DOE agreed to 
increase the royalty payment plan to ¥200 million per year starting 2004. A portion of the revised payment shall be applied 
to the amortization of the deferred royalty fees as of December 31, 2003 and the balance to 2004 and future obligations 
for existing PNOC-EDC operating projects. However, remittances of the local government units’ share of the royalty are 
made as they fall due pursuant to the Local Government Code.

Total royalty fees due to DOE amounted to ¥1,729,978,668 and ¥1,396,281,737 as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, 
respectively. On the other hand, total royalty fees due to LGUs amounted to ¥413,194,966 and ¥272,996,477 as of December 
31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The DOE approved the application of PNOC-EDC for the 20-year extension of the Tongonan, Palinpinon and Bacon-Manito 
Geothermal Service Contracts (GSCs). The extension is embodied in the fourth amendment to the GSCs dated October 30, 
2003. The amendment extends the Tongonan GSC from May 15, 2011 to May 16, 2031, while the Palinpinon and Bacon-
Manito GSCs are extended from October 16, 2011 to October 17, 2031.

38. GEOTHERMAL STEAM SALES CONTRACT 
 
 
The geothermal energy currently produced by the Company’s geothermal projects is supplied to its BOT contractors and 
the power plants owned and operated by NPC pursuant to the following steam sales contracts:

Tongonan I

Under the steam sales contract entered in June 1984 for Tongonan I, NPC agrees to pay the Company a base price per 
kilowatt-hour of net generation, subject to inflation adjustments and based on a guaranteed take-or-pay rate at 75% plant 
factor for a period of twenty-five years.

Palinpinon I

The steam sales contract for Palinpinon I provides, among others, that NPC shall pay the Company a base price per 
kilowatt-hour of gross generation, subject to inflation adjustments and based on a guaranteed take-or-pay rate at 75% 
plant factor.  The contract is for a period of twenty years commencing on December 25, 1988.

Palinpinon II

In June 1996, the Company and NPC signed a steam sales contract for Palinpinon II’s four modular plants  - Nasuji, Okoy, 
Sogongon I and Sogongon II. Under the terms and conditions, NPC agrees to pay the Company a base price per kilowatt-
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hour of gross generation, subject to inflation adjustments and based on a guaranteed take-or-pay rate commencing 
from the established commercial operation period, using the following plant factors: 50% for the first year, 65% for the 
second year and 75% for the third and subsequent years. The contract is for a period of twenty-five years for each module 
commencing on December 13, 1993 for Nasuji; November 28, 1994 for Okoy; January 28, 1995 for Sogongon I and March 
23, 1995 for Sogongon II.

Bacon-Manito I

The steam sales contract for the Bacon-Manito (Bacman) geothermal resources entered in November 1988 provides, 
among others, that NPC shall pay the Company a base price per kilowatt-hour of gross generation, subject to inflation 
adjustments and based on a guaranteed take-or-pay rate at 75% plant factor. The contract is for a period of twenty-five 
years commencing in May 1993.

Bacon-Manito II

Bacman II’s steam sales contract with NPC was signed in June 1996 for its two 20-MW capacity modular plants  - Cawayan 
and Botong. The terms and conditions under the contract contain, among others, NPC’s commitment to pay the Company 
a base price per kilowatt-hour of gross generation, subject to inflation adjustments and based on a guaranteed take-or-
pay rate commencing from the established commercial operation period, using the following plant factors: 50% for the 
first year, 65% for the second year and 75% for the third and subsequent years. The contract is for a period of twenty-five 
years commencing in March 1994 for Cawayan and December 1997 for Botong.

39. BUILD-OPERATE-TRANSFER (BOT) CONTRACTS 
 
 
Pursuant to Republic Act Number 7718 dated May 5, 1994 (Amended BOT Law), the Company entered into Energy 
Conversion Agreements (ECA) to convert the geothermal steam to be supplied by the Company to electricity with various 
international geothermal power producers for the construction and operation of power plants in Leyte and Mindanao. 
Under these contracts, the BOT Contractor shall deliver electricity to NPC on behalf of the Company.

Leyte

Under the ECA with the BOT Contractors, namely: California Energy for a) 125 MW Power Plant - Upper Mahiao Agreement; 
b) 231 MW Power Plant - Malitbog Agreement; and c) 180 MW Power Plant - Mahanagdong Agreement and with Ormat 
Inc. for the Leyte Optimization Project BOT Agreement, the Company shall pay the BOT Contractors monthly energy 
fees to be computed based on actual energy delivered and capacity fees, which include capital and fixed operating cost 
recovery fees and service fees, to be computed on a per kilowatt nominated capacity basis. 

Except for the capital cost recovery portions, the fees are subject to inflation adjustments. The contracts are for a period 
of ten years commencing July 1996 for the Upper Mahiao Agreement, July 1997 for the Malitbog and Mahanagdong 
Agreements and September 1997 for the Optimization Agreement.

Mindanao 

Under the terms and conditions of the ECA with Oxbow Power Corporation and Marubeni Corporation, the Company shall 
pay the BOT Contractor monthly energy efficiency fees and capacity fees, which include capital and fixed operating cost 
recovery fees and service fees, to be computed on a per kilowatt nominated capacity basis and excess energy fees which 
are payment for the share of BOT Contractor for the revenues from surplus energy generation on top of the nominated 
energy. Except for energy efficiency payments and capital cost recovery portion of capacity fees, the fees are subject to 
inflation adjustments. The contract is for a period of ten years commencing in March 1997 for Mindanao I (47 MW) and 
June 1999 for Mindanao II (48.25 MW).  
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40. POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENTS 
 
 
The electricity produced by the Company, through its BOT Contractors, is sold to NPC, pursuant to the following Power 
Purchase Agreements (PPA):

Leyte-Cebu, Leyte-Luzon

The PPA provides, among others, that NPC shall pay the Company a base price per kilowatt-hour of electricity delivered 
subject to inflation adjustments. The PPA stipulates a contracted annual energy of 1,370 GWH for Leyte-Cebu and 3,000 
GWH for Leyte-Luzon throughout the cooperation period. It also stipulates a nominated energy of not lower than 90% of 
the contracted annual energy. 

On November 12, 1999, NPC agreed to accept from PNOC-EDC a combined average annual nominated energy of 4,455 
GWH for the period July 25, 1999 to July 25, 2000 for both Leyte-Cebu and Leyte-Luzon PPA. The combined annual 
nominated energy starting July 25, 2000 is currently under negotiation with NPC. The contracts are for a period of twenty-
five   years commencing in July 1996 for Leyte-Cebu and July 1997 for Leyte-Luzon.

 47 MW Mindanao I

The PPA provides, among others, that NPC shall pay the Company a base price per kilowatt-hour of electricity delivered 
subject to inflation adjustments. The PPA stipulates a minimum offtake energy of 330 GWH for the first year and 390 GWH 
per year for the succeeding years. The contract is for a period of twenty-five years commencing in March 1997.

48.25 MW Mindanao II

The PPA provides, among others, that NPC shall pay the Company a base price per kilowatt-hour of electricity delivered 
subject to inflation adjustments. The PPA stipulates a minimum offtake energy of 398 GWH per year. The contract is for a 
period of twenty-five years commencing in June 1999.  

41. PRIVATIZATION 
 
 
The Company was granted approval by then President Fidel V. Ramos on June 14, 1996 to divest 60% of the National 
Government shareholdings (through the PNOC) in the Company, in line with the government’s policy of restructuring the 
power sector. In April 1997, the Committee on Privatization (COP) approved the proposed privatization plan recommending 
for the sale of approximately 30% to 40% of the Company’s shares through an initial public offering (IPO) and the remaining 
20% to 30% of shareholdings to a strategic investor through an auction process. The plan was approved by then President 
Fidel V. Ramos in July 1997.

On November 5, 1997, the PNOC Board, upon recommendation of the privatization advisors, decided to postpone the 
Company’s privatization, in view of the unfavorable equity market conditions. 

On November 23, 2004 and December 10, 2004, the Board of Directors of PNOC-EDC & PNOC, respectively, approved the 
re-activation of plans to privatize PNOC-EDC.

The privatization plan of PNOC-EDC shall involve the (a) issuance and sale of  5 billion new PNOC-EDC’s shares and (b) 
sale of 4 billion existing shares of PNOC in PNOC-EDC. 

In February 2005, PNOC-EDC awarded the mandate for financial advisory/underwriting/global coordinating services to 
CLSA Exchange Capital Inc. 
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Under the privatization masterplan, the overall implementing strategy for the Company’s privatization involved the sale 
through public bidding of each geothermal complex to be undertaken only after PNOC-EDC’s geothermal steamfields and 
NPC’s generating plants are combined for sale as one package.

During the August 25, 2005 presentation of PNOC-EDC’s Privatization Masterplan to the Joint Congressional Power 
Commission (JCPC), clearance to proceed with the Company’s privatization using the proposed implementing strategy 
was held in abeyance considering certain issues raised by some members of the Commission. As a result of this, PNOC-
EDC’s approach to its privatization was revised to one involving the sale through public bidding of PNOC-EDC shares of 
stock after a pre-negotiated Steam Sales Agreement (SSA) between Power Sector Assets and Liabilities Management 
Corporation (PSALM) and PNOC-EDC is finalized. This was presented to and approved by the PNOC-EDC and PNOC 
Boards last October and November 2005, respectively.

This modified approach to PNOC-EDC’s privatization was presented to the JCPC during its November 2005 meeting. As of 
end December 2005, clearance to proceed under the modified approach is still pending with the JCPC.

42. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS  
 
 
The Company established a funded, non-contributory retirement plan administered by a trustee bank, covering all its 
regular employees. Retirement costs include current service cost, experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense when the cumulative unrecognized  
actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous reporting period exceeded 10% of the higher of the defined benefit 
obligation and the fair value of the plan assets at that date. These gains and losses are recognized over the expected 
average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plan.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligations were carried 
out for December 31, 2005 by Solutions Incorporated. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, the related 
current service cost was measured using the projected unit credit method. 

Valuation at
2005 2004

Key assumptions used:
Discount rate p.a. 10.12% 12.27%
Expected return on plan assets p.a. 11.87% 12.47%
Expected rate of salary increases p.a. 7.00% 7.00%

 
The assumption on the expected rate of return on accumulated assets reflects the returns currently being earned and the 
historical investment rate of return experience from year 2001. 

Amounts recognized in income and expense in respect of these defined benefit plan are as follows: 

       2005     2004
Current service cost    ¥119,616,100       ¥189,406,600
Interest cost       192,005,800          250,180,800
Expected return on plan assets     (197,662,400)       (176,565,700)
Recognition of actuarial gain       (43,356,400)           -

Total ¥  70,603,100 ¥263,021,700
 
The actual return on plan assets was ¥144.7 million in 2005 and ¥172.3 million in 2004. 
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The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit retirement 
benefit plan is as follows: 

       2005        2004
Present value of defined benefit obligations ¥1,791,112,900 ¥ 1,758,346,871
Fair value of plan assets    (1,222,617,693)        (1,594,938,211)
Deficit in the  plan       568,495,207            163,408,660
Actuarial gains not yet recognized in balance sheet       335,026,000          780,276,700
Liability recognized in the balance sheet ¥   903,521,207 ¥    943,685,360

 
This amount is presented in the balance sheet under non-current liabilities.

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations in the current period are as follows: 

2005 2004
At January 1 ¥1,758,346,871    ¥2,136,016,671
Service cost     119,616,100       189,406,600
Interest cost     192,005,800       250,180,800
Actuarial (gains) and losses     358,560,000       (784,590,700)
Actual pension payments      ( 13,975,200)         (32,666,500)
Effect of settlement     (623,440,671)         -
At December 31  ¥1,791,112,900 ¥1,758,346,871

 
Movements in the fair value of plan assets in the current period are as follows: 

2005 2004
At January 1  ¥1,594,938,211   ¥1,398,086,611
Expected return on plan assets     197,662,400      176,565,700
Actuarial losses        (52,946,718)         ( 4,314,000)
Contributions from the sponsoring companies        110,767,300         57,266,400
Benefits paid      (627,803,500)         (32,666,500)
At December 31   ¥1,222,617,693  ¥1,594,938,211

 
The breakdown of the investment portfolio is as follows: 

                 2005
Debt instruments ¥1,096,892,483
Equity instruments     59,376,328
Property     27,855,825
Common trust funds     37,607,191

¥1,221,731,827
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The two-year experience adjustments are as follows:

2005 2004
Present value of defined benefit obligations ¥ 1,791,112,900 ¥ 1,758,346,871
Fair value of plan assets (1,222,617,693) (1,594,938,211)
Deficit in the plan ¥     568,495,207 ¥    163,408,660

2005 2004
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 
Amount ¥  49,827,200 ¥10,991,200
Percentage of plan liabilities (%) 2.78% 0.625%
Experience adjustments on plan assets
Amounts ¥386,191,900 ¥  4,314,000
Percentage of plan assets (%) 31.59% 0.27%

 
The estimated amount of contributions expected to be paid to the plan during the current financial year is ¥110.8 
million.   
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43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES  
 
 
As Petitioner

Case No. Particulars

CA GR  CV

962449 

PNOC-EDC vs. PNG Construction and Dev. Corp., et al.
Venue:  Court of Appeals, Manila
Re:  Breach of contract and damages

        PNOC-EDC’s claim against PNG

 
This case resulted from the contract entered into between PNOC-EDC and China State 
Construction and Engineering Corporation (CSCEC) for the construction of the Bacon-Manito 
I Fluid Collection and Disposal System. Among other things, this contract provided for the 
construction of the Logistics and Control Center (LCC). CSCEC sub-contracted the LCC 
portion of the project to PNG Construction and subsequently assigned and transferred to 
PNOC-EDC all its rights,  interests,  liabilities and obligations in the sub-contract agreement. 

PNG Construction failed to finish the job contract. PNOC-EDC filed the instant case but 
the Regional Trial Court of Makati City ruled in favor of PNG Construction. PNOC-EDC then 
appealed the case to the Court of Appeals where the case is still pending resolution.   
 

SC GR

166651

RP (Represented by the Department of Energy and PNOC-EDC) vs. City of Kidapawan, et al.

Venue: Supreme Court, Manila

Re: Prohibition with Prayer for the Issuance of Writ of Preliminary Injunction and/or Temporary 
Restraining Order with Motion for Reconsideration

This case arose from the notice of delinquency and warrant of levy issued by the City Treasurer 
of Kidapawan, Cotabato against PNOC-EDC for failure to pay real property taxes on the 701-
hectare Mount Apo Geothermal Reservation Area (MAGRA, site of Mindanao 1 and Mindanao 
2 Geothermal Power Plants) covering the tax period from 1993 – 2002.  

On December 9, 2005, the First Division of the Supreme Court,  chaired by Chief Justice 
Hilario Davide, Jr.,  rendered a decision holding that PNOC-EDC is the beneficial and actual 
owner of the MAGRA, hence,  liable to pay the real property tax thereon. The Supreme Court 
likewise ruled that PNOC-EDC is not entitled to exemption under its Service Contract with 
the Government. 

On January 6, 2006,  PNOC-EDC filed a motion for reconsideration based on Presidential 
Decree 1442.
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As Defendant

Case No. Particulars

CA GR Sp. No. 
81231

Frederick Ubag, et al vs. PNOC-EDC/ NCV/JMQ/RBC                                            

Venue:  Court of Appeals, Cebu City

Re:  Illegal Dismissal

This is a labor case involving contractual/term employees hired and engaged in connection with 
the construction and development stage of the Palinpinon II Fluid Collection and Reinjection 
System (Pal II FCRS). When the civil works for the construction and development stage of 
the Pal II FCRS had been substantially completed, the respective periods of employment 
of the contractual/term employees indicated in the contracts likewise ended. PNOC-EDC,  
thus,  had to let go of said contractual/term employees,  as it had no more activities for which 
their services can be utilized. Thirty (30) days prior to the termination of their contracts,  the 
concerned employees were served their notices of termination. These employees,  numbering 
more than a hundred,  filed their individual complaints which were consolidated by the NLRC 
Sub-Regional Branch VII,  Tacloban City. The Labor Arbiter decided against PNOC-EDC, 
which,  in turn,  appealed to the Court of Appeals  where the case is pending resolution. 

CA GR Sp. No. 
81542

Nationwide Security & Allied Services, Inc. vs. PNOC-EDC

Venue:  Court of Appeals, Manila

Re:  Injunction and Damages  Claims against PNOC-EDC  

This case stemmed from the public bidding for the security services at PNOC-EDC’s premises 
wherein Lockheed Detective and Watchman Agency, Inc. emerged as the lowest qualified 
bidder. The lowest bidder was actually King Investigation and Security Services, Inc. but was 
declared not qualified. Nationwide Security & Allied Services, Inc. filed a complaint with the 
Regional Trial Court of Makati City claiming that it was the next lowest bidder. Said complaint 
was decided in favor of PNOC-EDC and Nationwide Security appealed to the Court of Appeals 
where the case is still pending resolution.

44. EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE
 
 
Last January 31, 2006, the Company received from the Bureau of Internal Revenue a tax credit certificate (TCC) amounting 
to ¥811,222,563.84 representing  refund for excess unutilized input value added tax for the period December 26, 2000 to 
June 25, 2001 (¥626,657,646.03) and balances for the period December 25, 1999 to June 25, 2000 (¥95,430,453.83) and for 
the period  June 26, 2000 to December 25, 2000 (¥89,134,463.98). On the same date, the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) 
issued tax clearances for the years 2000 through 2004.

Consequently,  the Company   filed  last March 9 and 21, 2006 the Motions  to Withdraw with the Court of Tax Appeals for 
its Petitions for Review docketed as  CTA Case Nos. 7258, 7268 and 7339 filed on April 27, 2005,  May 27, 2005 and June 9, 
2005,  respectively.  Accordingly, the CTA granted PNOC-EDC’s Motions to Withdraw and considered CTA Case Nos. 7268, 
7339 and 7258 closed and terminated on March 28, 2006,  April 4, 2006 and April 12, 2006,  respectively. 
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45. SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES OF GEOTHERMAL RESERVES 
 
 
In October 2004, PNOC-EDC has contracted GeothermEX to provide an independent review of the updated geothermal 
energy reserves made by the PNOC-EDC’s Reservoir Engineering Department for four geothermal fields:  Bacon-Manito 
(Luzon), Mindanao (Mindanao), Palinpinon (Negros) and Greater Tongonan (Leyte).

Five available methods of estimating geothermal reserves are considered as regards their applicability to PNOC-EDC’s 
fields:  empirical methods, volumetric reserve estimation, decline curve analysis,  lumped-parameter modeling and 
numerical simulation of the reservoir. It is concluded that, of these methods, only volumetric estimation and numerical 
simulation are generally useful to PNOC-EDC for estimating reserves. PNOC-EDC has conducted numerical simulation 
of most of its fields. A detailed review of one such simulation study, for Mindanao field, showed it to be reasonable. It is 
pointed out that while numerical simulation is more sophisticated than volumetric reserve estimation, the latter can be 
readily conducted in a probabilistic way,  while the former cannot.

GeothermEX uses the same volumetric reserve estimation method used by PNOC-EDC   for various fields which is 
patterned after the United States Geological Survey but differ only in the heat recovery factor. GeothermEX concludes that 
PNOC-EDC’s estimation is conservative due to the low heat recovery factor values of 0.10 to 0.30 employed by PNOC-EDC; 
GeothermEX estimates of reserves in these field locations are 2.25 times more than those of PNOC-EDC.

Proved geothermal reserves refer to reserves which can be produced with known certainty and delineated in known 
production limits as confirmed by drilling and production history.

Probable reserves refer to those that could be proven by normal step-out drilling as well as those that could be extracted 
by improved recovery techniques like acidizing.

Possible reserves refer to those reserves that are currently unextractable because of resource and technology problems 
but may found to be commercial in the future.

The following table shows a comparison of estimated geothermal energy reserves from PNOC-EDC and GeothermEx:  

Estimated Geothermal Energy Reserves

Field

Mean Reserves
PNOC-EDC 
Estimates

(Mwe)

Means Reserves
GeothermEx

Estimates
(Mwe)

Proved Reserves
GeothermEx

Estimates
(MMBFOE)

Proved Reserves
GeothermEx

Estimates
(kwh of energy)

Greater 
Tongonan (Leyte) 415 867 145.4 96,940
Palinpinon 
(Negros Oriental) 170 440 74.4 49,612
Bacon-Manito 
(Luzon) 185 421 65.3 43,542
Mindanao 203 478 54.1 36,105
Total 973 2,206 339.2 226,199
Source: GeothermEx Report, December 2004

GeothermEx Estimates of Reserves in Million Barrels of Oil Equivalent

Field
Proved Reserves

(MMBFOE)

Proved + Probable
Reserves

(MMBFOE)

Proved + Probable + Possible 
Reserves

(MMBFOE)
Greater 
Tongonan 145.4 247.2 455.6
Bacon-Manito  65.3 98.2 222.9
Palinpinon  74.4 189.0 211.8
Mindanao 54.1 97.3 171.9
Total 339.2 631.7 1,062.2
Source: GeothermEx Report, December 2004
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
 
The Due from affiliated companies and to PNOC accounts consist of the following:                

2005 2004
Due from affiliated companies
-  PNOC Petrochemical  Dev’t. Corporation ¥1,354,533 ¥1,398,731
-  PNOC Coal Corporation 724,846 686,549
-  PNOC Exploration Corporation 398,060 1,720,161
-  PNOC Property Dev’t. and Mgt. Corp. 116,379 150,905
-  PNOC Shipping and Transport Corp. - 59,335
       Total ¥2,593,818 ¥4,015,681 

                
2005 2004

Due to PNOC ¥364,167,738 ¥460,310,921

Transaction Amount
2005 2004

Due from affiliated companies
-  PNOC Petrochemical  Dev’t. Corporation ¥                 - ¥1,473,731
-  PNOC Coal Corporation 38,297 129,789
-  PNOC Exploration Corporation 4,194,799 4,867,398
-  PNOC Property Dev’t. and Mgt. Corp. 417,029 464,830
-  PNOC Shipping and Transport Corp. - 93,710
       Total ¥4,650,125 ¥7,029,458

                
Transaction Amount

2005 2004
Due to PNOC ¥569,886,967 ¥639,712,822

     

  a.   Transactions due from affiliated companies  represent normally recurring charges and credits which are payable 
the following month upon presentation of debit/credit notes.   

                
b.   Transactions due to PNOC represent the interest and guarantee fee on loans from IBRD and OECF, which 

were acquired by PNOC and relent to PNOC-EDC being the implementing agency, and the interest on the P200 
million balance of loan obtained directly from PNOC. Each re-lending agreement is covered by a subsidiary loan 
agreement.  The agreement provides that PNOC-EDC shall repay PNOC the principal, interest, commitment 
charges and such other amounts, fees and charges payable by PNOC to the lending banks including such 
amounts incurred by PNOC in connection with the purchase of foreign currencies. Outstanding liabilities of 
PNOC-EDC on such loans are shown as part of the Long-term debt account.

 
Remuneration of Key Management Personnel 
 
The remuneration of the directors and other members of key management personnel of the Company, is set out below in 
aggregate for each of the categories specified in PAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures. 

   2005   2004
Short-term employee benefits ¥52,340,297 ¥73,323,538
Termination benefits ¥23,414,458   ¥6,706,292
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of risks. The main risks arising from those activities are foreign currency 
risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and interest rate risk. (Market price risk arising from all our financial instruments is also 
being closely monitored.)  The Company’s Risk Management Committee is currently in the process of finalizing the 
policies for managing each of these risks for the Board’s approval. 

The Company’s financial risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

Foreign exchange risk

The Company held financial assets and liabilities that are denominated in US dollar and Japanese yen. Thus, the Company 
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency exposures with respect to the US dollar and the Japanese yen 
transactions. Foreign exchange risk mainly arises from future payments of BOT lease obligations, foreign loans and other 
commercial transactions.

The geothermal service contracts, steam sales agreements and power purchase agreements include built-in mechanism 
to mitigate the Company’s financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The service contracts allow full 
cost recovery while the sales contracts include billing adjustments covering the movements in Philippine Peso and the 
US Dollar rates, US Price and Consumer Indices, and other inflation factors.

Credit risk

The credit risk associated with the Company is its dependence on one customer - the National Power Corporation, a 
government owned corporation.

Liquidity risk

The Company seeks to manage the liquidity profile to be able to finance working and capital expenditures and service 
debt obligations.

As part of the liquidity risk management program (intended to stabilize cash flows and improve investment and cash 
flows planning) carried out by the Treasury Department, the Company regularly evaluates the projected and actual cash 
flow information and continuously assess conditions in the financial markets for opportunities to pursue fund-raising 
initiatives. These initiatives may include bank loans, credit facilities and debt capital and equity market issues.

Interest rate risk

The Company’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The 
interest rates of finance leases to which the Company is a lessee are fixed at the inception of the lease. These leases 
expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk. 

The Company’s cash flow interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at floating rate expose 
the Company to cash flow interest rate risk mostly on intervals of six  months. 
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48. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2005 2004
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income ¥9,916,097,363 ¥2,441,677,644
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided 
from operating activities    

Depreciation and amortization 2,455,089,925 2,462,945,267
Deferred tax expense (income) 2,171,591,063 (51,856,074)
Provision for (Reduction to the) allowance for doubtful 

accounts 238,346,719 (11,397,738)
Foreign exchange loss (gain) (6,891,076,084) 1,732,504,749
Write-down of NPC receivables                - 392,601,802
Amortization of deferred costs                - 260,661,558
Write-off of investment in Victoria                - 108,256,812
Allowance due to impairment of assets                - 62,463,047

Interest expense 1,741,969,046 1,408,649,695
Operating income before working capital changes 9,632,018,032 8,806,506,762
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Decrease (Increase) in:
Cash – restricted 3,284,180,923   (3,284,180,923)
Accounts receivable – trade (338,157,681) (1,992,614,260)
Accounts receivable – nontrade (2,155,067) (159,596,193)
Parts and supplies inventories 96,281,572 (12,727,587)
Due from affiliated companies 1,421,863 (1,766,207)
Other current assets (276,166,461) 360,622,854
Long-term receivables from NPC (559,981,783) 610,565,973
Royalty fee reimbursable from NPC (272,568,285) (54,789,778)
Other non-current assets 244,067,658 (530,361,673)

Increase (Decrease) in:

Accounts payable 90,286,347 (835,648)
Accrued expenses (89,897,779) (965,724,148)
Due to affiliated companies (96,143,184) 73,326,305
Income tax payable 1,677,383,618 1,120,406,825
Other long-term liabilities (27,586,509) 202,968,443
Royalty fee payable 140,198,490 54,535,324
Due to the Department of Energy 333,696,931 78,034,930

Cash generated from Operations 13,836,878,685 4,304,370,999
Interest expenses paid     (1,008,785,015) (718,242,116)
Income taxes paid        (278,407,614) (672,164,362)
Net cash provided from operating activities ¥12,549,686,056     ¥2,913,964,521
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49. EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO PFRSs 
 
 
This is the first year that the Company has presented its financial statements under PFRS. The following disclosures 
are required in the year of transition. The last financial statements under the Philippine GAAP were for the year ended 
December 31, 2004 and the date of transition to PFRSs is therefore January 1, 2004.

 Reconciliation of equity at January 1, 2004 (date of transition to PFRSs)

Notes Philippine GAAP
Effect of transition 

to PFRSs PFRSs

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents ¥4,376,512,800     ¥                      - ¥4,376,512,800

Trade and other receivables - net a 3,513,653,913 (1,503,067,807) 2,010,586,106

Parts and supplies inventories b 856,409,375 244,434,690 1,100,844,065

Due from affiliated companies 2,249,474 - 2,249,474
Other current assets 3,334,694,290     - 3,334,694,290

Total Current Assets 12,083,519,852 (1,258,633,117) 10,824,886,735

Non-current Assets

Investments           153,366,645 -     153,366,645

Property and equipment - net c 31,734,234,747 (18,178,296,175) 13,555,938,572

Production wells – net d - 12,518,613,220 12,518,613,220

BOT power plants – net e 41,313,670,575 (18,493,249,450) 22,820,421,125

Exploratory and development costs f 4,560,842,681 (1,100,382,181) 3,460,460,500

Investment property – net g - 281,515,854 281,515,854

Deferred tax assets h - 6,417,786,044 6,417,786,044
Other non-current assets – net i    2,498,941,295        (30,168,285)    2,468,773,010

Total non-current assets   80,261,055,943   (18,584,180,973)  61,676,874,970

Non-current assets held for sale j -            30,168,285        30,168,285
Total Assets ¥92,344,575,795 (¥19,812,645,805) ¥72,531,929,990

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable k       ¥192,852,708 (¥192,852,708)     ¥                          -

Short-term loans 333,516,000 - 333,516,000

Trade and other payables l - 3,833,223,091 3,833,223,091

Accrued expenses m 3,545,348,820 (3,545,348,820) -

Income tax payable 342,613,895 - 342,613,895

Due to affiliated companies n 176,823,627           10,160,989 186,984,616

Due to PNOC 200,000,000 - 200,000,000

Royalty fee payable 418,461,152 - 418,461,152

BOT lease obligations 6,125,613,152 - 6,125,613,152
Current portion of long-term debt 3,185,289,021 - 3,185,289,021
Total Current Liabilities  14,520,518,375           105,182,552  14,625,700,927
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Notes Philippine GAAP
Effect of transition 

to PFRSs PFRSs

Other Deferred Credits o  1,503,067,807  (1,503,067,807) -

Non-current Liabilities
Royalty fee payable – net of current 
portion    1,118,246,807 -   1,118,246,807
BOT lease obligation - net of current 
portion 14,878,253,184 - 14,878,253,184
Long-term debt - net of current portion 41,650,828,771 - 41,650,828,771

Retirement benefit obligation p -         737,930,070 737,930,070
Other long-term liabilities q 999,647,598 (774,217,403) 225,430,195

Total Non-current Liabilities  58,646,976,360           (36,287,333)  58,610,689,027

Total Liabilities  74,670,562,542  (1,434,172,588)  73,236,389,954

STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY

Capital stock  10,000,000,000              -  10,000,000,000

Donated capital r 423,068,469 (423,068,469) -
Retained earnings (Deficit) s 7,250,944,784 (17,955,404,748) (10,704,459,964)

Total Stockholder’s Equity  17,674,013,253  (18,378,473,217)  (704,459,964)
Total Liabilities and  Stockholder’s Equity  ¥92,344,575,795 (¥19,812,645,805) ¥72,531,929,990

       Notes to the reconciliation of equity at January 1, 2004

The following notes explain the material adjustments made at January 1, 2004 to the Company’s balance sheet at 
December 31, 2003 to reflect the conversion from Philippine GAAP to PFRS.

(a) Trade and other receivables

Reclassification of other deferred credits from liability, 
Decrease in trade and other receivables (¥1,503,067,807)
 
Other deferred credits were reclassified from liability to asset as a contra account of trade accounts receivables. 
These other credits largely pertained to the revenues from NPC on the Unified Leyte nominated capacity which 
were contested and not paid by NPC.

(b) Parts and supplies inventories

i. Derecognition of allowance for obsolescence ¥274,019,006
ii. Reclassification of major inventory spare parts to property and 

equipment (29,584,316)
Net increase in parts and supplies inventories ¥244,434,690

 
i. The allowance for obsolescence was derecognized in compliance with PAS 2,  “Inventories.”  Under this 

standard, the inventory should be valued at lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). 
ii. The uninstalled major inventory spare parts for the Fluid Collection and Reinjection System (FCRS) were 

reclassified from parts and supplies inventories to property and equipment in compliance with PAS 16, 
“Property,  Plant and Equipment.”

(c) Property and equipment 

i. Reclassification of IPP to production wells – net (¥24,802,959,485)
ii. Reclassification of investment properties – net (42,903,366)
iii. Increase in the value of assets following the adoption of fair value as 

deemed costs 5,990,005,713
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iv. Reclassification of interest charges from production wells and other 
related costs – net 647,976,647

v. Reclassification of major inventory spare part 29,584,316
Net decrease in property and equipment (¥18,178,296,175)

i. The investment in producing properties (IPP) were renamed and reclassified separately under the new account 
title “production wells” in the balance sheet. The IPP is identified as one class of assets that represents 21% 
of the company’s total assets.

ii. Lands and buildings occupied by PNOC Exploration Corporation (PNOC-EC) and PNOC were identified as 
investment property under PAS 16 and reclassified to a new account, investment property, in compliance with 
PAS 40, “Investment Property”

iii. Management has elected to avail of the exemptions under PFRS 1 that allows the adoption of fair value as 
deemed cost in respect of the company’s property and equipment. The valuation of the property and equipment 
performed at January 1, 2004 assessed the fair value of the property and equipment at ¥13,743,915,696 from 
a carrying amount under Philippine GAAP of ¥7,753,909,983.

iv. Capitalized interest charges pertaining to the construction of FCRS were reclassified from production wells. 
These charges were previously classified as IPP.

v. Uninstalled inventory of major inventory spare parts for the FCRS were reclassified from parts and supplies 
inventories in compliance with PAS 16.

(d) Production wells 

i. Reclassification of IPP from property and equipment – net ¥24,802,959,485
ii. Transfer of one well hooked to the FCRS from exploration & development 

costs 73,062,049
iii. Write-off of capitalized forex losses (11,709,431,667)
iv. Reclassification of interest charges to property and equipment (647,976,647)

Net increase in production wells ¥12,518,613,220
 

i. The management decided to show the investment in producing properties (IPP) separately under the new 
title “production wells” in the balance sheet. The IPP is identified as one class of assets that represents 21% 
of the total company’s assets. 

ii. The new well in Leyte was hooked to the FCRS in September 2003, thus reclassified from exploratory and 
development costs to production wells in 2005. 

iii. Capitalized foreign exchange losses were written off in compliance with PAS 21, “Effects of Changes in 
Foreign Exchange Rates.”

iv. Capitalized interest charges pertaining to the construction of FCRS were reclassified to property and 
equipment. These charges were previously lumped under IPP.

 
(e) BOT power plants

Write-off of capitalized forex losses, 
Decrease in BOT power plants  (¥18,493,249,450)

Capitalized foreign exchange losses on the repayment and realignment of the BOT lease obligations were written 
off in compliance with PAS 21. 

(f) Exploratory and development costs

i. Write-off of capitalized forex losses (¥1,017,805,790)
ii. Reclassification of one well hooked to the FCRS (74,105,576)
iii. Derecognition of allowance for obsolescence (11,214,069)
iv. Accumulated vacation leave balances 2,743,254

Net decrease in exploratory and development costs (¥1,100,382,181)
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i. Capitalized foreign exchange losses on the repayment and realignment of the foreign loans were written off 
in compliance with PAS 21. 

ii. The new well in Leyte was hooked to the FCRS in September 2003. Correspondingly, the costs of this well was 
reclassified from exploratory and development costs to production wells and amortized over the remaining 
life of the FCRS. 

iii. The amount pertained to the allowance for obsolescence which was derecognized in compliance with PAS 2. 
iv. The accumulated vacation leave balances as of December 31, 2003 was recognized. 

(g) Investment property

i. Reclassification from property and equipment – net ¥42,903,366
ii. Increase in the values of assets following the adoption of fair value as 

deemed costs 238,612,488
Increase in investment property ¥281,515,854

Lands and buildings occupied by PNOC-EC and PNOC were identified as investment property and reclassified to 
investment property in compliance with PAS 40. 

(h) Deferred tax assets

Overall impact of the shift from operating lease to finance lease for income 
tax and PFRS adjustments,
Increase in deferred tax assets ¥6,417,786,044

The Company has recalculated deferred income tax for the change in recognition measurement from operating 
lease to finance lease for BOT transactions. PAS 12, “Income Taxes” allows a net presentation of deferred tax 
assets and liabilities only when certain criteria are met.  

(i) Other non-current assets

i. Reclassification of materials and supplies for disposal to non-current 
assets held for sale  (¥28,692,896)

ii. Reclassification of surplus assets available for sale to non-current assets 
held for sale (1,475,389)
Decrease in other non-current assets  (¥30,168,285)

For items i and ii, the accounts were reclassified to the new account title “non-current assets held for sale” as 
provided for under PFRS 5, “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.”

(j) Non-current assets held for sale

i. Reclassification of materials and supplies for disposal from other non-
current assets – net ¥28,692,896

ii. Reclassification of surplus assets available for sale from other non-
current assets – net 1,475,389
Increase in non-current assets held for sale ¥30,168,285

 
For items i and ii, the accounts were reclassified from other non-current assets to the new account title “non-
current assets held for sale” as provided for under PFRS 5, “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations.”

(k) Accounts payable

Reclassification of the account to trade and other payables, 
Decrease in accounts payable (¥192,852,708)

  
The account was reclassified to trade and other payables, the new account title under PFRS.
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(l) Trade and other payables

i. Reclassification from accrued expenses ¥3,545,348,820
ii. Reclassification from accounts payable 192,852,708
iii. Accrual of Leyte BOT’s related reimbursement costs 95,021,563

Increase in trade and other payables ¥3,833,223,091
 

i. Reclassification of accrued expenses to trade and other payables, new account title under PFRS
ii. Reclassification of accounts payable to trade and other payables, new account title under PFRS
iii. Accrual of estimated Leyte BOT’s related reimbursement costs 

(m)  Accrued expenses 

Reclassification to trade and other payables, 
Decrease in accrued expenses (¥3,545,348,820)

  
The account was reclassified to trade and other payables, the new account title under PFRS.

(n) Due to affiliated companies 

Accrual of interest on PNOC borrowings, 
Increase in due to affiliated companies ¥10,160,989

  
Accrual of 2003 interest on the ¥200 million borrowings from PNOC.

(o) Other deferred credits

Reclassification to trade and other receivables as contra account, 
Decrease in other deferred credits.  (¥1,503,067,807)

 
The other deferred credits were reclassified from liability to asset as contra account of trade accounts receivables. 
These credits largely pertained to the revenue from NPC on the Unified Leyte nominated capacity contested by 
NPC.

(p) Retirement benefit obligation

i. Reclassification of accrued retirement benefit from other long-term 
liabilities   ¥842,148,870

ii. Adjustment on retirement benefits based on actuarial study (104,218,800)
Net increase in retirement benefit obligation    ¥737,930,070

i. Accrued retirement benefit was reclassified from other long-term liabilities to the new account title, retirement 
benefit obligation, under PFRS.

ii. Retirement benefit was adjusted on December 31, 2003 based on the actuarial study made by the Solutions 
Incorporated and in compliance with  PFRS 1. 

(q) Other long-term liabilities

i. Reclassification of accrued retirement benefits to retirement benefits 
obligation  (¥842,148,870)

ii. Accumulated vacation leave balances 67,931,467
Net decrease in other long-term liabilities  (¥774,217,403)

 
i. Accrued retirement benefit was reclassified to the new account title, retirement benefit obligation, under 

PFRS.
ii. Accumulated vacation leave balances as of December 31, 2004 in accordance with PAS 19, “Employee 

Benefits.” 
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(r) Donated Capital

Derecognition of the account due to the full depreciation of the donated 
computers, 
Decrease in donated capital  (¥423,068,469)

The account was derecognized and credited to retained earnings. The donated computers, which were recorded 
in the books as assets, were already fully depreciated. The depreciation of these computers were expensed and 
charged against income. 

(s) Retained Earnings (Deficit)

The cumulative effect of all the above adjustments has reversed the Company’s retained earnings to a deficit on 
account of the adjustments made to retained earnings as of  January 1, 2004  totaling ¥17,955,404,748

Reconciliation of equity at December 31, 2004 (date of last Philippine GAAP financial statements)

Notes
Philippine 

GAAP

Effect of 
transition to 

PFRSs PFRSs

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents ¥     846,319,965   ¥                       - ¥     846,319,965
Cash – restricted 3,284,180,923 3,284,180,923
Trade and other receivables - net a 6,410,146,061 (1,953,883,469) 4,456,262,592
Parts and supplies inventories b 914,653,553        135,546,417 1,050,199,970
Due from affiliated companies 4,015,681 - 4,015,681
Other current  assets 2,981,872,718     - 2,981,872,718
Total Current Assets 14,441,188,901 (1,818,337,052) 12,622,851,849
Non-current Assets
Investments   45,000,000            -     45,000,000
Property and equipment - net c 27,084,067,215 (14,117,831,386) 12,966,235,829
Production wells – net d - 12,194,242,693 12,194,242,693
BOT power plants – net 21,845,062,625 - 21,845,062,625
Exploratory and development costs e 4,296,660,382 (354,818,753) 3,941,841,629
Investment property - net f - 280,628,418 280,628,418
Deferred tax assets g 1,083,276,044 5,386,366,074 6,469,642,118
Other non-current assets - net h 1,703,988,603 (119,646,167) 1,584,342,436
Total Non-current Assets 56,058,054,869 3,268,940,879 59,326,995,748

Non-current assets held for sale i -       34,682,390       34,682,390
Total Assets ¥70,499,243,770 ¥ 1,485,286,217 ¥71,984,529,987

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payables j ¥   192,017,060  (¥192,017,060) ¥                      -
Trade and other payable k - 3,415,732,200 3,415,732,200
Accrued expenses l 3,096,773,496 (3,096,773,496) -
Income tax payable m - 790,856,358 790,856,358
Due to affiliated companies n 235,348,149 24,962,772 260,310,921
Due to PNOC 200,000,000 - 200,000,000
Royalty fee payable 472,996,476 - 472,996,476
BOT lease obligations 6,352,690,167 - 6,352,690,167
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Notes
Philippine 

GAAP

Effect of 
transition to 

PFRSs PFRSs

Current portion of Long-term debt 3,378,922,463 - 3,378,922,463
Total Current Liabilities 13,928,747,811  942,760,774 14,871,508,585

Other Deferred Credits o     552,466,605  (552,466,605) -

Non-current Liabilities
Royalty fee payable - net of current 
portion 1,196,281,737 - 1,196,281,737
BOT lease obligation - net of current 
portion 8,319,071,616

                  
- 8,319,071,616

Long-term debt - net of current portion 44,694,121,660 - 44,694,121,660
Retirement benefit obligation p - 943,685,360 943,685,360
Other long-term liabilities q 1,153,057,979 (930,414,630) 222,643,349
Total non-current liabilities  55,362,532,992      13,270,730 55,375,803,722
Total Liabilities  69,843,747,408    403,564,899 70,247,312,307

STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY
Capital stock ¥10,000,000,000 ¥                      - ¥10,000,000,000
Donated capital r 423,068,469 (423,068,469) -
Revaluation increment s 7,771,053,616 (7,771,053,616) -
Deficit t   (17,538,625,723)   9,275,843,403 (8,262,782,320)
Total Stockholder’s Equity      655,496,362    1,081,721,318 1,737,217,680
Total Liabilities and Stockholder’s 

Equity ¥70,499,243,770 ¥1,485,286,217 ¥71,984,529,987

Notes to the reconciliation of equity at December 31, 2004

The nature of the adjustments from Philippine GAAP to PFRS at  December  31, 2004 is similar to that of the 
adjustments from Philippine GAAP to PFRS at  January 1, 2004. These relate to the following:

(a)  Trade and other receivables

i. Reversal of claims from the BIR  (¥1,486,380,641)
ii. Reclassification of other deferred credits from liability (467,502,828)

Decrease in trade and other receivables  (¥1,953,883,469)

(b) Parts and supplies inventories 

i. Derecognition of allowance for obsolescence ¥163,754,801
ii. Reclassification of major parts to property and equipment (28,208,384)

Net increase in parts and supplies inventories ¥135,546,417

(c) Property and equipment 

i. Reclassification of IPP to production wells – net  (¥13,323,634,289)
ii. Reversal of appraisal increase on revaluation made in Nov. 2004 (6,910,658,961)
iii. Reclassification of investment properties – net (42,869,548)
iv. Increase in the value of assets following the adoption of fair value as 

deemed costs – net 5,513,131,033
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v. Reclassification of interest charges from production wells and other 
related costs – net 618,361,060

vi. Reclassification of major inventory spare parts 27,839,319
Net decrease in property and equipment  (¥14,117,831,386)

(d) Production wells 

i. Reclassification of IPP from property and equipment – net ¥13,323,634,289
ii. Transfer of wells hooked from exploration & development costs 342,456,409
iii. Reversal of appraisal increase on revaluation made in Nov. 2004 (853,486,945)
iv. Reclassification of interest charges to property and equipment-net (618,361,060)

Net decrease in production wells ¥12,194,242,693

(e) Exploratory and development costs

i. Reclassification of wells hooked to FCRS (¥352,502,479)
ii. Derecognition of allowance for obsolescence (17,667,613)
iii. Depreciation of the increase in the value of assets applied as deemed 

costs 12,003,889
iv. Accumulated vacation leave balances 3,347,450

Net decrease in exploratory and development costs (¥354,818,753)

(f) Investment property

i. Reclassification from property and equipment – net ¥ 42,869,548
ii. Increase in the values of assets following the adoption of fair value as 

deemed costs – net 237,758,870
Net increase in investment property ¥280,628,418

(g) Deferred tax assets

Overall impact of the shift from operating lease to finance lease for income 
tax and PFRS adjustments, 
Increase in deferred tax assets ¥5,386,366,074

(h)  Other non-current assets

i.  Reclassification of materials and supplies for disposal to non-current 
assets held for sale – net  (¥34,682,390)

ii.  Reclassification of other deferred credits from liability  (84,963,777)
Decrease in other non-current assets (¥119,646,167)

(i) Non-current assets held for sale

Reclassification of materials and supplies for disposal from other non-
current assets – net, 
Increase in non-current assets held for sale ¥34,682,390

(j) Accounts payable

Reclassification of the account to trade and other payables, 
Decrease in accounts payable (¥192,017,060)
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(k) Trade and other payable

i. Reclassification from accrued expenses ¥3,096,773,496
ii. Reclassification from accounts payable 192,017,060
iii. Accrual of estimated reimbursable expenses from BOT contractors 126,941,644

Increase in trade and other payables ¥3,415,732,200

(l) Accrued expenses

Reclassification to trade and other payables, 
Decrease in accrued expenses (¥3,096,773,496)

(m) Income tax payable

Accrual of current tax liability on non-steam operations, 
Increase in income tax payable ¥790,856,358

Due to change in BIR reporting of BOT contracts from operating lease to finance lease

(n) Due to affiliated companies

Accrual of interest on PNOC borrowings, 
Increase in due to affiliated companies ¥24,962,772

(o) Other deferred credits

Reclassification to trade and other receivables as contra account,
Decrease in other deferred credits  (¥552,466,605)

(p) Retirement benefit obligation

i. Reclassification of accrued retirement benefit obligation from other 
long-term liabilities ¥1,008,727,201

ii. Adjustment on retirement benefits expense for 2004 39,176,959
iii. Adjustment on 2003 retirement benefits based on actuarial study (104,218,800)

Net increase in retirement benefit obligation ¥   943,685,360

(q) Other long-term liabilities

i. Reclassification of accrued retirement benefits to retirement benefits 
obligation

    
(¥1,008,727,201)

ii. Accumulated vacation leave balances 78,312,571
Net decrease in other long-term liabilities  (¥   930,414,630)

(r) Donated capital

Derecognition of the account which pertained to the fully 
depreciated donated computers, 
Decrease in donated capital  (¥ 423,068,469)
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(s) Revaluation increment

i. Reversal of appraisal increase on revaluation of property and equipment 
conducted in November 2004 (¥6,917,566,671)

ii. Reversal of appraisal increase on revaluation of production wells 
conducted in November 2004  (853,486,945)
Net decrease in revaluation increment (¥7,771,053,616)

(t) Deficit

The cumulative effect of all the above adjustments has resulted in a decrease in deficit at   December 31, 2004 
by ¥9,275,843,403.

Reconciliation of net income for 2004

Note
Philippine 

GAAP

Effect of 
transition to 

PFRSs PFRSs
Net sales ¥20,644,488,402   ¥                   - ¥20,644,488,402
Cost of sales a (11,142,587,377) (457,727,328) (11,600,314,705)
Gross profit 9,501,901,025  (457,727,328) 9,044,173,697
Other operating income b 1,314,528,807 (126,342,570) 1,188,186,237
Operating expenses c (2,080,963,971) (83,408,284) (2,164,372,255)
Other operating expenses d (800,914,447) 1,698,178 (799,216,269)
Income from operations 7,934,551,414 (665,780,004) 7,268,771,410
Finance costs e (1,805,576,217) (14,801,783) (1,820,378,000)
Foreign exchange  loss (1,938,165,015) - (1,938,165,015)
Income before income tax 4,190,810,182     (680,581,787) 3,510,228,395
Income tax expense f (1,286,336,923) 217,786,172 (1,068,550,751)
Net Income ¥2,904,473,259 (¥462,795,615) ¥2,441,677,644

 
Notes to the reconciliation of profit or loss for 2004

(a) Cost of sales

i. Depreciation of the increase in the value of property and equipment 
following the adoption of fair value as deemed costs ¥416,041,733

ii. Accrual of Leyte BOT reimbursable expenses 31,920,081
iii. Amortization of wells hooked in 2003/2004 but reclassed to production 

wells in 2005 9,002,543
iv. Accumulated vacation leave balances 6,392,168
v. Depreciation of major parts attached to property and equipment in 2004 236,957
vi. Reversal of withdrawn major parts (5,050,417)
vii. Reversal of allowance for obsolescence (815,737)

Net increase in cost of sales ¥457,727,328
 

i. 2004 depreciation of increase in the value of property and equipment with the adoption of fair value as deemed 
costs in January 1, 2004 

ii. Accrued Leyte BOT reimbursable expenses for 2004
iii. Amortization of new wells in Leyte area hooked in 2003 and 2004 but were transferred/reclassified to 

production wells from exploratory and development costs in 2005
iv. 2004 accumulated vacation leave balances which were recognized in compliance with PAS 19
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v. Depreciation of major parts attached to property and equipment in 2004 in compliance with PAS 16
vi. Reversal of withdrawn parts previously classified as parts and supplies inventories but reclassified to property 

and equipment  in compliance with PAS 16
vii. Reversal of allowance for obsolescence in compliance with  PAS 2

(b) Other operating income
 

Reversal of allowance for obsolescence, 
Decrease in other operating income  (¥126,342,570)
 
The allowance for obsolescence was derecognized in compliance with PAS 2. Under this standard, the 
inventory should be valued at lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV).  

(c) Operating expenses

i. Depreciation of the increase in the value of assets following the adoption 
of fair value as deemed costs ¥49,682,677

ii. Additional accrual of retirement benefits 39,176,959
iii. Accumulated vacation leave balances 3,384,740
iv. Derecognition of allowance for obsolescence (8,809,085)
v. Derecognition of depreciation expense of non-current assets held for 

sale (27,007)
Net increase in operating expenses ¥83,408,284

(d) Other operating expenses

i. Reversal of appraisal decrease on land booked in December 2004  (¥6,907,710)
ii. Loss on retirement of major parts replaced 5,182,525
iii. Provision for impairment of surplus assets 27,007

Net decrease in other operating expenses  (¥1,698,178)
 

(e) Finance costs

Accrual of interest charges on PNOC borrowings, 
Increase in finance costs ¥14,801,783
 
The interest from 2003 onward of the ¥200 million PNOC borrowings were accrued only in December 2005.  

(f) Income tax

i. Increase in current income tax due to change in the income tax reporting 
of BOT transactions from operating lease to finance lease ¥899,442,249

ii. Decrease in deferred income tax expense due to change in the income 
tax reporting of BOT transactions from operating lease to finance lease (1,117,228,421)
Net decrease in income tax  (¥217,786,172)
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Reconciliation of cash flows for year ended 31 December 2004

Notes
Philippine 

GAAP

Effect of 
Transition to 

PFRSs PFRSs
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash receipt from customers a ¥17,852,028,795 ¥799,845,347 ¥18,651,874,142
Cash paid to suppliers and employees b (13,525,144,164) (822,358,979) (14,347,503,143)
Cash generated from operations 4,326,884,631 (22,513,632) 4,304,370,999
Interest expenses paid c (703,440,333) (14,801,783) (718,242,116)
Income taxes paid d (698,528,331) 26,363,969 (672,164,362)
Net cash from operating activities 2,924,915,967 (10,951,446) 2,913,964,521
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Stocks and other investments 29,322,285 - 29,322,285
Exploratory and development costs e (995,837,178) 5,768,921 (990,068,257)
Capital expenditures f (327,215,416) 5,182,525 (322,032,891)
Investments in joint venture (179,523) - (179,523)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,293,909,832) 10,951,446 (1,282,958,386)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Payment of BOT lease obligations (6,048,724,385) - (6,048,724,385)
Repayment of long-term debt (3,261,656,981) - (3,261,656,981)
Short-term financing with local banks (2,333,516,000) - (2,333,516,000)
Long-term loan proceeds 4,482,698,396 -  4,482,698,396 
Short-term loan proceeds 2,000,000,000 - 2,000,000,000
Net cash used in financing activities (5,161,198,970) - (5,161,198,970)
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash 

Equivalents (3,530,192,835) - (3,530,192,835)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning 

of Year 4,376,512,800 - 4,376,512,800
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year ¥   846,319,965 ¥       - ¥   846,319,965

Notes to the reconciliation of  cash  flows  for 2004

(a) Cash receipts from customers

Reclassification of other deferred credits from liability to trade accounts 
receivable,
Net increase in cash receipt from customers ¥799,845,347

Other deferred credits were reclassified from liability to asset as a contra account of trade accounts receivables. 
These other credits largely pertained to the revenues from NPC on the Unified Leyte  nominated capacity which 
were contested and not paid by NPC.

(b) Cash paid to suppliers and employees

i. Reclassification of other deferred credits from liability to trade accounts 
receivable ¥799,845,347

ii. Reclassification of overpayment made to the BIR for income tax payments 
on non-steam operations due to operating lease treatment of BOT capital 
cost recovery payments to income tax payable when the shift to capital 
lease accounting treatment was made 26,363,969
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iii. EDD’s depreciation expense that should have been charged to exploratory 
and development costs but taken up in cost of sales under previous 
GAAP 7,188,853

iv. Net book value of major parts replaced and retired 5,182,525
v. Accrual of interest on PNOC Borrowings (14,801,783)
vi. Derecognition of allowance for obsolescence that should have been 

charged to operating cost but taken up in exploratory and development 
costs under previous GAAP (815,737)

vii. Accrual of vacation leave balances for 2004 (604,195)
Net increase in cash paid to suppliers and employees ¥822,358,979

 

(c) Interest expenses paid

Accrual of interest charges on PNOC borrowings, 

Net increase in interest expenses paid ¥14,801,783

(d) Income tax paid

Reclassification of income tax payment non-steam operations under capital 
lease for BOT transactions from claims receivable – BIR, 

Net decrease in income tax paid  (¥26,363,969)

(e) Exploratory and development costs

i. EDD’s depreciation expense that should have been charged to exploratory 
and development costs but taken up in cost of sales under previous 
GAAP

 (¥7,188,853)

ii. Derecognition of allowance for obsolescence that should have been 
charged to operating cost but taken up in exploratory and development 
costs under previous GAAP 815,737

iii. Accrual of vacation leave balances for 2004 charged to exploratory and 
development costs 604,195
Net decrease in exploratory and development costs  (¥5,768,921)

 (f) Capital expenditures

Net book value of major parts attached to FCRS replaced and retired in 
2004

Net decrease in capital expenditures  (¥5,182,525)

50. AUHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
 
 
The Board of Directors approved and authorized for issue the Company’s financial statements on March 23, 2006 per 
Board Resolution No. 19, series of 2006.

     * * *
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